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We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Madura Micro Finance Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2021, its loss including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Madura Micro Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Basis for Opinion

Emphasis of Matter

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

We draw your attention to Note no. 46 to the Standalone financial statements about the uncertainties prevailing on the balance
sheet date on the recoverability of the company’s loans and advances on account of the COVID-19 impact. The estimates and
assumptions made by management in determining the impairment provision required for these loans are subject to matters
that are outside the control of the Company and hence the actual results may vary from these estimates.  

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter. 
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements for the financial year ended 31’st March 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. 

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

Timely identification and classification of the impaired
loans, and  

Determination of probability of defaults (PD) and
estimation of loss given defaults (LGD) based on the
value of collaterals and relevant factors  

Classification of assets to stage 1, 2, or 3 (i.e.
classification in 'significant increase in credit risk' (“SICR”)
and 'default' categories) using criteria in accordance with
Ind AS 109 which also include considering the impact of
recent RBI’s Covid-19 regulatory circulars;  
Accounting interpretations, modelling assumptions and
data used to build and run the models;   
Measurement of borrowers’ provisions including Covid-
19 impact assessment of multiple economic scenarios;  
Inputs and Judgements used in determination of
Management overlay at various asset stages considering
the current uncertain economic environment with the
range of possible effects unknown to the country arising
out of the COVID 19 Pandemic and 

Provision for expected credit loss (ECL) on loans (Refer note
3.13.4 and note 6 to the Financial Statements) 

Management estimates impairment provision using
Expected Credit loss model for the loan exposure.
Measurement of loan impairment involves application of
significant judgement by the management. The significant
judgements are:  

The estimation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial
instruments involves significant judgements and estimates.  

Following are points with increased level of audit focus: 

The disclosures made in Financial Statements for ECL
especially in relation to judgements and estimates by the
Management in determination of the ECL. 

Read and assessed the Company's accounting policy for
impairment of financial assets and its compliance with Ind
AS 109, the governance framework approved by the Board
of Directors and moratorium pursuant to the RBI circular
and tested the implementation of such policy on a sample
basis. 

 Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on their
past-due status to check compliance with requirement of
Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of performing loans (stage 1) to
assess whether any SICR or loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or 3 or vice
versa along with additional considerations applied by the
Management for staging of loans as SICR or default
categories in view of Company’s policy on moratorium. 

 Tested the input data used for grouping and staging of loan
portfolio into various categories and default buckets for
determining the PD and LGD rates. Also, agreed the input
data with the underlying books of accounts and records. 

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic factors
(including COVID-19 pandemic).  

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL
provision performed by the Company in spreadsheets.  

Assessed disclosures included in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements in respect of expected credit losses
including the specific disclosures made with regard to the
management's evaluation of the uncertainties arising from
COVID-19 and its impact on ECL estimation. 

Key Audit Matter

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors report and chairman’s statement but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the reports, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance. 

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for Standalone
Financial Statements 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements. 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also: 
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication. 

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements Refer Note 33 to the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts at the end of the year for which
there was any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company

(h) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the remuneration paid by the company to its directors is in
accordance with the prescribed provisions and the remuneration paid to every director is within the limit specified under
Section 197 except for Central Government approval yet to be received for appointment and payment of remuneration to
erstwhile Managing Director for the period from Oct 2013 to Sep 2016. Refer note 43.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018 

S Narasimhan
Partner
Membership No. 206047

UDIN:21206047AAAABU2778
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(i) In respect of the Company’s fixed assets :

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets which in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain fixed assets
were physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the
examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable
properties of the land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at Balance Sheet date

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, Goods and Services Tax(GST), cess and any other
statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There are no dues relating to income tax / sales tax / service tax / duty of customs / duty of excise / value added
tax, Goods and Services Tax (GST) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

Referred to in paragraph 1 on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report of even date to the members of Madura Micro Finance Limited (“the Company”) on
the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021. 

(ii)

(iii)

((vii)

Interest income on all financial assets required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised using the contractual interest
rate.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act except for an unsecured advance of Rs.2.36 cr to its subsidiary, Madura Micro Education Private
Limited and which amount is outstanding as on 31st March 2021. This advance has been fully provided for in the books.
According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no specific terms regarding interest or principal
repayment in respect of this advance However, in view of this being a 100% subsidiary, it is not considered as being
prejudicial to the interest of the company, as the amount has been fully provided for and no interest is being accrued on
this advance. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with provisions
of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees, and
securities, as applicable. No interest is being accrued on advance given to subsidiary as the entire amount of advance
has been provided for.

(vi) IThe Company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central Government under sub section (1) of
section 148 of the Act.

(viii) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks, Government or dues to debenture
holders.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans taken during the year were applied for the
purposes for which those are raised.

(v) Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the Act and the rules made there under and hence clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable.
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(x) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that
no significant fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act
except for Central Government approval yet to be received for appointment and payment of remuneration to erstwhile
Managing Director for the period from Oct 2013 to Sep 2016.  Refer note 43.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii) of
the Order are not applicable.

(xiii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, all the transactions
entered into with the related parties during the year are in compliance with Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment of shares during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xiv) of the
Order are not applicable.

(xv) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

(xvi) The company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, and accordingly
registration has been obtained.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018 

S Narasimhan
Partner
Membership No. 206047

UDIN:21206047AAAABU2778
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We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Madura Micro Finance Limited (“the Company”) as
of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report of even date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Opinion

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls with certain changes for remote work environment were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018 

S Narasimhan
Partner
Membership No. 206047

UDIN:21206047AAAABU2778
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2021

Balance Sheet

Note

(1) Financial assets

(1) Financial liabilities

(3) Equity

 No.
As At

31.03.2020
As At

31.03.2019

 in crores 

Total liabilities and equity 2,598.23 2,149.15 

Total assets 2,598.23 2,149.15 

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Chennai  Tara Thiagarajan  F S Mohan Eddy 

Date: 26.04.2021
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I

 II

 V

VI

VII

VIIIOther comprehensive income 

Subtotal (a) 

Subtotal (b) 
Other comprehensive income (VIII = a+b) 

 (0.04)  (0.21)

 (0.21) (0.04)

 0.73 

 (0.23)

26.74 

79.84 

29

 434.77 368.92 

Other income

432.93 471.11 

STANDALONE  AS AT 31.03.2021

Note
 No.

As At
For the year ended 

31.03.2020
As At

31.03.2019

 in crores 
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IX

X

 (0.27)  79.63Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII) (comprising

10.00 each)
Basic (Rs.) 
Diluted (Rs.) 

As per our report of even date
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Firm Registration No:003990S / S200018

(Membership No : 206047)

 Ganesh Hegde Chennai

 Tara Thiagarajan  F S Mohan Eddy 

Date: 26.04.2021
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As per our report of even date
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Firm Registration No:003990S / S200018

(Membership No : 206047)

 Ganesh Hegde Chennai

 Tara Thiagarajan  F S Mohan Eddy 

Date: 26.04.2021

As at 01.03.2019  46.26  83.65  184.86  314.77 

As at 31.03.2020  62.19  83.65  248.56  394.40 

As as at 31.03.2021  62.19  83.65  248.29  394.13 

Equity share capital

Statutory reserve 
(As required by 

India Act, 1934)

Other equity

 in crores

premium
 Retained 
earnings  Total 
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 (163.12)  (254.11)

Investing activities

(80.60)

44.47 (40.55)

 (103.90)  (77.57)

Working capital changes:

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
For the year ended
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As per our report of even date
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Firm Registration No:003990S / S200018

(Membership No : 206047)

 Ganesh Hegde Chennai

 Tara Thiagarajan  F S Mohan Eddy 

Date: 26.04.2021

Financing activities

Total

441.38 

 405.26 
 80.19 

 485.45 

485.45 

 485.45 

(8.85)

 (53.77)
 133.96 

 80.19 

80.20 

80.19 
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Madura Micro Finance Limited (“the Company”), headquartered in Chennai, is a Company incorporated on 02.09.2005
under Companies Act, 1956 and registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-deposit accepting Non-Banking
Financial Company (NBFC-ND) with effect from 28.02.2006. The Company got classified as a Non-Banking Financial
Company - Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI) effective 11.12.2013. Some of the company’s debentures are listed in
Bombay Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to the execution of Share Purchase Agreements dated 27th November 2019 by the Promoters, Major
Shareholders and others, 75.64% of the paid-up Capital of the Company has been acquired by M/s CreditAccess Grameen
Limited (CAGL), Bangalore, a Non-Banking Financial Company, on 18th March 2020.Consequently, effective 18th March
2020, your Company has become a Subsidiary of CAGL. As at 31 March 2021, CAGL holds 76.25% of the company.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing loans to the Self-Help Groups (SHG) members and other
loans.
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for
issue on 26th April 2021

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended till date)] and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

In respect of significant accounting matters, the Company has analysed the provisions contained in Ind AS and the relevant
guidance as per RBI Guidelines and has adopted appropriate accounting treatment while ensuring compliance with RBI
Guidelines. The Company follows the prudential norms for income recognition, asset classification and provisioning as
prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for NBFC-MFI’s and follows the provisioning norms as per Reserve Bank of India or
IndAS whichever is more stringent.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets held for trading and
financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair
value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest crores,
except when otherwise indicated.

In view of the matters as mentioned in Note 46 , the Company has assessed the impact of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-
19) pandemic on its liquidity and ability to repay its obligations as and when they are due. After the lock down was lifted the
business activities in the economy has improved. Borrowers are gradually able to increase repayment of loans. Company
has seen increase in collection efficiency month on month. The new loan disbursements have also improved. The area of
operation is rural and semi-urban, where the impact of the second wave has been lower and is likely to remain lower. Even
in case of partial lockdown, the recoveries of loan is not expected to deteriorate. Company has sufficient liquidity to pay off
its debts and Company has widened its funding sources while retaining existing lenders. Based on the foregoing and
necessary stress tests considering various scenarios, management believes that the Company will be able to pay its
obligations as and when these become due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the standalone financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

Madura Micro Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31’st March, 2021

Corporate information1.

2. Basis of preparation
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Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Substitution of the definition of term 'Material'

Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - In order to maintain consistency with    Ind
AS 1, the respective changes have been made to Ind AS 8 also.

Ind AS 10 Events after the Reporting Period - Clarification on the disclosures requirements to be made in case of a
material non- adjusting event.

Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - In order to maintain consistency with the amendments made in other Ind AS,
respective changes have been made to Ind AS 34.

Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Clarification on the accounting treatment for
restructuring plans.

Ind AS 103 Business Combination - Detailed guidance on term 'Business' and 'Business Combination' along with
providing an Optional test to identify concentration of Fair Value.

Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Clarification on certain disclosures to be made in respect of uncertainty
arising from interest rate benchmark reforms.

Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - Clarification on temporary exceptions from applying specific hedge accounting
requirements along with providing guidance on transition for hedge accounting.

(i Ind AS 116 Leases - Clarification on whether rent concessions as a direct consequence of COVID- 19 pandemic can be
accounted as lease modification or not. 

None of these amendments has any material effect on the Company's financial statements

 Business model assessment (Refer Note no.3.13) - Financial Instrument
 Fair value of financial instruments (Refer Note no.3.15) - Fair value measurement
 Effective interest rate (EIR) (Refer Note no. 3.1.1)
 Impairment of financial assets (Refer Note no.3.13.4)- Impairment of financial assets
 Provisions (Refer Note no. 3.8)
 Contingent liabilities and assets (Refer Note no.3.9)
 Provision for tax expenses (Refer note no.3.11) - Taxes
 Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note no. 3.6.1)
 Leases covered under INDAS 116 (Refer note 34)

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and judgements. In
view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of items, it is possible that the
outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the Management’s estimates are based.
Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various line items in the financial statements for e.g.:

New and amended standards and interpretation

New Standards notified but not effective 

Estimation of impairment allowance on financial assets amidst COVID-19 pandemic: 

None

2.1 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and associated assumptions, especially for determining the impairment allowance for Company’s financial assets,
are based on historical experience and other emerging factors on account of the pandemic which may also have an effect
on the expected credit loss. The Company believes that the factors considered are reasonable under the current
circumstances. 
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The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in accodance with Schedule III Division III of Companies Act
2013.

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the balance sheet. They are offset
and reported net only when INDAS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similarly the Company offsets incomes and
expenses on a net basis only when it is specifically permitted to do so by INDAS.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, where the company applies the credit adjusted EIR
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial recognition, and
Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets but subsequently have
become credit-impaired financial assets, where the company applies EIR to the amortised cost of the
financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

The Company computes Interest income by applying the Effective interest rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

When calculating the EIR, the Company includes all fees and charges paid or received to and from the borrowers
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts, but
not future credit losses.

2.2 Presentation of Consolidated financial statements

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1 Revenue recognition

3.1.1 Interest income

3.1.2  Interest income on all financial assets required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised using the contractual
interest rate.

3.1.3 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

3.1.4 The Company recognises gains on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and
realised gains on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL on net basis.

3.1.5  Income from assignment transactions i.e. present value of excess interest spread is recognised when
the related loan assets are de-recognised.

3.1.6  Interest income on deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable. 

The Company has used indicators of moratorium and delayed repayment metrics observed along with an estimation of
potential stress on probability of default and exposure at default due to COVID-19 situation in developing the estimates
and assumptions to assess the expected credit losses on loans. Given the dynamic nature of the pandemic situation with
surge in Second Wave, these estimates are subject to uncertainty and may be affected by the severity and duration of the
pandemic.
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Borrowing cost on financial liabilities are recognised by applying the 
EIR.

Cash and cash equivalents, comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term investments with an original maturity of
three months or less, that are readily convertible with insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Costs comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), any attributable expenditure in making the assets ready for intended
use.

Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated

3.2 Finance cost

3.3 Cash and cash equivalents

3.4 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

3.5 Intangible assets
IIntangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties and
other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization criteria
are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Following initial
recognition intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Transition to IND AS

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all assets, recognised as of 1 April
2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the
transition date.

3.6 Depreciation and amortization

3.6.1 Depreciation

Depreciation on PPE (other than freehold land and properties under construction) is recognised and measured on the
depreciable amount ( being cost less residual value) using the straight-line method as per the useful life estimated by the
management which are as follows:

Assets costing less than Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, and
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The management has estimated supported by
independent assessment by professionals, the useful life of motor vehicles as 8 years which is lower than the prescribed
rate under Schedule II to the Act.

3.6.2 Amortisation
Amortisation on intangible assets is recognised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, for the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on prospective basis. Management has estimated the useful life of Software to be
the license period or 3 years, whichever is lower.

 Useful Life Asset Type 
Computer
Office equipment
Plant and Machinery
Mobile phones
Motor Vehicles
Furnitures & Fixtures
Electrical Fittings
Buildings
Software

3 years
5 years

10 years
5 years
8 years

10 years
10 years
30 years

5 years
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The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account if available. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the
item (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss, when the item is derecognised.

An Intangible-assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible-assets measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is
material.

3.7 Impairment of non–financial assets

De- Recognition:

3.8 Provisions

3.9 Contingent liabilities and assets
Contingent liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or (ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

3.10 Retirement and other employee benefits

3.10.1 Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective fund. The Company recognises contribution
payable to the respective fund as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

Gratuity liability, which is unfunded, is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurement of the liabilities are included in other comprehensive income.

3.10.2 Defined benefit plan
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The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year.

Current income tax assets and liabilities, including any adjustments of current tax for prior periods, are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961, using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off the recognized
amounts and the company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax.

3.10.3 Leave salary.

3.11.1 Current income tax

3.11.2 Deferred tax

3.12 Deferred tax

3.11 Income Taxes

3.10.4 Short-term employee benefits ,including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave)
where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related services and non-monetary benefits for current employees,
are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provision of
the instruments.

3.13 Financial instruments
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Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. The classification of financial instruments at initial
recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention when
acquiring them. All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Debt instruments at amortised cost
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI.

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows.

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. After initial measurement
such loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method less 
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses 
arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being carried to other
comprehensive income, if both the following conditions are met:

3.13.1 Financial Assets

3.13.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement

3.13.1.2 Subsequent measurement

3.13.1.3 Financial assets measured at amortized cost

3.13.1.4 Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

3.13.1.5. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset other than those stated as amortized cost/FVTOCI is subsequently fair valued through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a financial instrument that is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Dividend
income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as on initial recognition. All financial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 
directly attributable transaction costs. The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments, which are
measured at amortised cost.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

3.13.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement

3.13.2 Financial Liabilities

3.13.3 Reclassification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

3.13.4 Impairment of financial assets

3.13.2.2 Subsequent measurement

3.13.2.3 De-recognition of financial liabilities

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received or receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if
such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial
asset.

The Group recognises Impairment allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on Financial Assets held at
amortized cost. The Group also computes the provision for non-performing assets (NPA) as per IRAC norms of 
RBI. The higher of the two is recorded in the books.

The measurement of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes from reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events and current conditions.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime
expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL). The Group’s policies for
determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk are set out in note no--3.13.4.2

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) such as 
loans and advances and security deposits held at amortised cost are tested for impairment based on
evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort. Lifetime Expected credit losses are
assessed and loss allowances recognised if the credit quality of the financial asset has deteriorated
significantly since initial recognition.

3.13.4.1 Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance principles
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3.13.4.2 Measurement of ECLs

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for Loan Receivables.

ECL consists of three key components: Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss given
default (LGD). ECL is the product of PD, EAD and LGD.

The Exposure at Default (“EAD”) is an estimate of the exposure (gross carrying amount), at a future default
date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments.

The Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default
may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the loan has not been previously derecognised
and is still in the portfolio.

The Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given
time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would
expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of
the Exposure at Default.

To calculate the ECL, the Company assesses the possible default events at various stages of the loans. The
Company has broadly followed the following approach to compute ECL.

The Advances exposure is broadly classified into 2 pools: MFI loans and individual loans. The EAD is
categorised based on respective Past Due status as given below:

Stage 1: 12mECL

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has
low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified under this
stage. The Company has assessed that all standard advances and advances upto 30 days default would fall
under this category.

Stage 2: LTECL — Significant increase in credit risk

Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified
under this stage. 30 Days Past Due upto 90 Days Past Due is considered as significant increase in credit risk
and classified under this category. For these assets, LTECL are recognized.

Stage 3: LTECL — credit impaired

All exposures greater than 90 Days Past due assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this
stage. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a LTECL is recognised. Probability of Default is
considered at 100% for credit impaired loans. Interest revenue on these loans is recognized on actual
realization, in line with prudential norms.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of
whether a financial assets’ credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the
change in the risk of defaults occurring over the remaining life of the financial assets.

For loans sourced through business correspondants, the Non- performing assets are recovered from them as per
contractual terms and recognised as income in the period in which it becomes a NPA

3.14. Recovery of NPA from Business Correspondents

Loans are written off when they are overdue for more than 180 days. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to
statement of profit and loss.

3.15. Write-offs
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The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation techniques. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

-In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company operates in a single business segment i.e. lending to members, having similar risks and returns for the
purpose of Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic.

3.16 Fair value measurement

3.17 Segment information

3.18 Foreign currency

3.18.1 All transactions in foreign currency are recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction

3.18.2 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the close of the period.

3.18.3 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on the restatement of Groups’s monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous
Consolidated financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

3.19 Leases  (where the Company is the lessee)

The Company as a lessee
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Notes

4. Cash and cash equivalents

5. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

485.45 

 2,093.62 

1,989.54 

1,989.54 

2,095.98 

1,989.54 

 2,095.98 

1,989.54 

1,875.07 

1,831.97 

1,831.97 

1,877.23 

1,831.97 

1,877.23 

1,831.97 

(A 1) Term loans (excluding securitised assets):

Total - Gross

Term Loans - Net

(A 2) Loan to related parties:

Loan to related parties - Net

Total Loans - Net

(B) (a) Secured by tangible assets

Total - Gross

Total - Net

(C 1) Loans in India

Total - Gross

Total - Net

(C 2) Loans outside India

Total - Net

 52.91 56.94

80.20 
Total

Total
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31.03.2021 31.03.2020Particulars

(A) Term loans:

Total - Gross

Total - Net

(B) 

Total - Gross

Total - Net

(C 1) Loans in India

Total - Gross

Total - Net

(C 2) Loans outside India

Total - Net

Total

Gross carrying value of assets as at
 31st March 2020
Particulars

Total

Gross carrying value of assets as at
 31st March 2020

Movement between stages

Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st
 March 2021

 1,906.55

 1,900.18 

 37.04

 108.19 

 31.64

 98.37 

 1,975.23

 2,106.74 

1,900.18 

 1,906.55 

108.19 

37.04 

98.37 

 31.64 

2,106.74 

 1,975.23 

 15.89 

 13.12 

 15.89 

 13.12 

 15.89 

 13.12 

 98.14 

 94.60 

 98.14 

 94.60 

 98.14 

 94.60 

Notes

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Group lending loans - (Self help groups, Joint Liability Group and Securitised assets)
Gross carrying value of assets as at
 31st March 2021  in crores

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 
 in crores

61



ECL allowance as at 31st March 2020

Movement between stages

ECL allowance as at 31st March  2021*

ECL allowance as at 31st March 2019

Movement between stages

ECL allowance as at 31st March  2020  18.96 7.36  20.23 46.55 

Movement between stages

Gross carrying value of assets as at 
31st March 2020

1,906.55 37.04  31.64  1,975.24 

 18.96

 20.03 

 7.36

 20.29 

 20.23

 66.17 

 46.55

 106.49 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 
 in crores

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 
 in crores

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 
 in crores

Notes
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Total

6(B)

Total 6.03 0.04  6.07 

 1.68  0.39  0.71  2.78 

Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st 
March 2020

Movement between stages

Gross carrying value of assets as at 
31st March 2021

0.01 0.00 

0.02

0.36 0.37 

 Stage 1 

Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st March 2021 

 Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 
 in crores

 Stage 1 

Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st March 2020

 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL 
allowances in relation to Individual lending loans:  

 Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

 Stage 1 

Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st March 2020

 Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st 
March 2019

Movement between stages

Gross carrying value of assets as at 
31st March 2020

 6.03  0.04 6.07 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

 in crores

Notes

63



31.03.2021 31.03.2020
7

Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st 
March 2019

Movement between stages

Gross carrying value of assets as at 
31st March 2020

Total

Total

Total  0.37 0.76 

22.05  12.60 

0.34  45.36 

Investments

8

Investments

0.06 0.02 0.08 

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Notes
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Total
* Nature of security

Debentures (secured) (at amortised cost)  Number of
 debentures 

 "Amount 
(  in crores)" 

Face value
 (in Rs)

Terms of debentures

168.85 

168.85 

137.30 

137.30 

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Notes
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Term loans (secured)

Term loans (unsecured)

Cash credit (secured)

Total

Total 1,417.64 1,902.86 

1,902.86 1,417.64 

Total  4,860  4,860  153.85  137.30 

Debentures (unsecured) at amortised cost

Particulars

12. Borrowings other than debt securities (at amortised cost)

 Number of
 debentures 

 "Amount 
(  in crores)" 

Face value
 (in Rs)

Terms of debentures 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Notes
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Debentures (subordinated liabilities, at
 amortised cost)  Number of

 debentures 
 "Amount 
(  in crores)" 

Terms of debentures 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Debentures

Term loans

Total

Total

 Total  50.02  50.02 

 74.93 

74.93 

 74.90 

 - 
 74.90 

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Notes

Face value
 (in Rs)
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Particulars
Financial liability towards securitisation14

15

16

17

Provisions

Total  80.79  9.15 

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Particulars

 Total  1.73  0.98 

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Particulars

 Total  5.85 

 

4.23 

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Particulars

 Total 1.74 2.17 

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Notes
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Particulars
Issued capital

Equity shares

ended March 31, 2021

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning
and at the end of the year

(b) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

(c) Details of shares held by holding company

18

Total

Total

 Outstanding at the end
 of the year

 Equity shares of INR 10 each

 7,194,761 7.19  7,194,761 7.19 

 7.19  7.19 

 10.00  10.00 

31.03.2021

31.03.2021

No. of Shares "Amount 
(  in crores)"

31.03.2020

No. of Shares "Amount 
(  in crores)"

Equity shares

31.03.2021

No. of Shares "Amount 
(  in crores)"

31.03.2020

No. of Shares "Amount 
(  in crores)"

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5%
shares in the Company

Equity shares of INR 10 each 
fully paid

Particulars
31.03.2021

No. of Shares % holding % holding
31.03.2020

No. of Shares

31.03.2020

Notes
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19

19.1

19.2

Total  394.13  394.13 

Particulars

Nature and purpose of reserve
Securities premium reserve

Statutory reserve (As required by Sec 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)

20. Interest income

Particulars

Total  412.62 454.94 

"For the year ended 
       31.03.2021

measured at amortised cost measured at amortised cost

"For the year ended 
       31.03.2020

The conditions and restrictions for distribution attached to statutory reserves as 

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Other equity

Notes
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21. Fees and commission

22. Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes

23. Others

Particulars

Total

13.59 10.36 

2.26

2.26

2.51

2.51 

 0.01  0.26 

"For the year ended 
 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

"For the year ended 
 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

Particulars
"For the year ended 

 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

24. Other Income

Total 2.34 4.39 

Particulars
"For the year ended 

 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

Notes
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25. Finance costs

(A) On borrowings

(A) On borrowings

 securitisation 

Total Finance costs

185.76 

 4.39 

 0.17 

 190.32 

185.23 

 9.96

 0.20 

 195.39 

Particulars
"For the year ended 

 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

26. Finance costs

26.

27.

(A) On borrowings

(A) On borrowings

 securitisation 

Total Finance costs

Total

Total 80.26 67.09 

124.66 56.76 

185.76 

 4.39 

 0.17 

 190.32 

185.23 

 9.96

 0.20 

 195.39 

Particulars
"For the year ended 

 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

Particulars
"For the year ended 

 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

Particulars
 "For the year ended  "For the year ended 

 31.03.2021 

 measured at amortised cost  measured at amortised cost 

 31.03.2020 

Notes
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28. Other expenses

29.

A.

Other expenses 

Auditors remuneration

Details of CSR expenditure

Total

Total

Total tax charge  0.73 26.74 

 0.75  0.48 

35.28 44.69 

Particulars
"For the year ended 

 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

Particulars
"For the year ended 

 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

Particulars
"For the year ended 

 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

Particulars
"For the year ended 

 31.03.2021     31.03.2020 

Notes
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Income tax expense reported in statement

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Net Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  12.24 12.27  24.52  24.52  (7.53) 0.01 

0.73  26.74

B.
 by India’s domestic tax rate

Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2021

Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

Particulars

"For the year ended 
 31.03.2021 

       "Net bala-
           nce 

 31.04.2020 

        "Net bala-
          nce 
      31.03.2020 

        Deferred 
 tax asset

      Deferred 
       tax liability

  (Charge)
 /credit in 

 and loss

           Recogn-
             ised

 in OCI

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Net Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 10.64 1.53  12.24 15.64  (3.40) 0.07 

Particulars  "Net bala-
           nce 

 31.04.2019 

        "Net bala-
          nce 
      31.03.2021 

        Deferred 
 tax asset

      Deferred 
       tax liability

 (Charge)
 /credit in 

 and loss

           Recogn-
             ised

 in OCI

    31.03.2020 

Notes
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The following tables provides the details of income tax assets as at:
Current tax assets (net) 

Particulars

Total

Securitisations

Net position at amortised cost 3.97  13.81 

1.37 4.48 

 31.03.2021  31.03.2020 
 in crores

Particulars  31.03.2021  31.03.2020 
 in crores

D.

30.

Notes
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Madura Micro Finance  Financial Statements

31(A) ed be

Gra

31(A)(1) c e e

Par r  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
c   v e of de e e b

Obligation at the beginning of the year 2.55 1.71 
Current service cost 0.91 0.65 
Interest cost 0.13 0.11 
Past service cost - - 
Bene ts settled -0.28 -0.21 
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income -     - 
- Changes in experience adjustments 0.04 0.12 
- Changes in demographic assumptions - 0.00 
- Changes in nancial assumptions 0.01 0.16 
O  of e ear 3.36 2.55 

c   v e of pl
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value - - 
Interest income on plan assets - - 
Re-measurement- actuarial gain - - 
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income -  - 
Contributions - - 
Bene ts settled - - 

e f he v - - 
e e e b 3.36 2.55 

31(A)(2)

Par r  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
Current service cost 0.91 0.65 
Interest cost 0.13 0.11 
Past service cost - - 
Interest income - - 

a  co 1.04 0.76 

31(A)(3) Re-m reme d her com ve

Par r  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
Re-m reme f e e
- Changes in experience adjustments 0.04 0.12 
- Changes in demographic assumptions - 0.00 
- Changes in nancial assumptions 0.01 0.16 
Re-m reme f e e
Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate

T al A ar al ( / e OCI 0.05 0.28 

31(A)(4)

Par r  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
Funds managed by insurer - - 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the
 net de ned bene t liability/assets and its components:
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31(A)(5) De ed be e  obl a - Ac a mp

Par c ar  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
Discount rate 4.85% 4.90%
Future salary growth 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition rate 30.00% 30.00%
Normal retirement age 60 years 60 years

31(A)(6) Se  a al

Par c ar
Present Value of Obligation (Base) 3.36 55.2  

crea Decr e crea Decr e
Discount rate (1% movement) 3.23      3.50 2.45 2.65 
Future salary growth (1% movement) 3.49      3.23 2.64 2.46 
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates) 2.72      4.75 2.08 3.55 
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 3.36      3.36 2.55 2.55 

31(B) Compe ed leave ab ce

31(B)(1) Reco c a  of e  de ed be e a

0202 ,13 hcraM 1202 ,13 hcraM ralcraP
Reco c a  of pre e val e of de ed be e  obl a

86.1raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta noitagilbO 1.29  
80.1tsoc ecivres tnerruC 0.69  
80.0tsoc tseretnI 0.09  

-tsoc ecivres tsaP -  
32.0-delttes stifeneB -0.19 

-emocni evisneherpmoc rehto ni desingocer sessol /)sniag( lairautcA -  
21.0-stnemtsujda ecneirepxe ni segnahC- -0.29 

-snoitpmussa cihpargomed ni segnahC- 0.00 
00.0snoitpmussa laicnanif ni segnahC- 0.09  
94.2rae eh fo de eh a oalbO 1.68  

Reco c a  of pre e val e of pla
-eulav riaf ta ,raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta stessa nalP -  
-stessa nalp no emocni tseretnI -  
-niag lairautca -tnemerusaem-eR -  
-emocni evisneherpmoc rehto ni desingocer stessa nalp no nruteR -  
-snoitubirtnoC -  
-delttes stifeneB -  

Pla  a  a  he d of he ear, a  fa r val e - -  
94.2lbal feeb defed eN 1.68  

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other 
assumptions constant, would have a cted the de ned bene t obligation by the amounts shown below:

 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net de ned 
bene t liability/assets and its components:
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31(B)(2) Expe  reco  or lo

0202 ,13 hcraM 1202 ,13 hcraM ralcraP
80.1tsoc ecivres tnerruC 0.69  
80.0tsoc tseretnI 0.09  

-tsoc ecivres tsaP -  
-emocni tseretnI -  

Re-mea reme f he e  de ed be e  l a - -  
21.0-stnemtsujda ecneirepxe ni segnahC- -0.29 

-snoitpmussa cihpargomed ni segnahC- 0.00 
00.0snoitpmussa laicnanif ni segnahC- 0.09  

Re-mea reme f he e  de ed be e  a - -  
-etar tnuocsid naht ssel /)retaerg( stessa nalp no nruteR   -  

40.1ol ro forp  deocer eepxE 0.58  

31(B)(3) Pla

0202 ,13 hcraM 1202 ,13 hcraM ralcraP
Funds managed by insurer - -  

31(B)(4) De ed be e a - Ac ar al mp

0202 ,13 hcraM 1202 ,13 hcraM ralcraP
%09.4%58.4etar tnuocsiD
%00.01%00.01htworg yralas erutuF
%00.03%00.03etar noitirttA

sraey 06 sraey 06 ega tnemeriter lamroN

31(B)(5) Se v  a al

Pa c
Present Value of Obligation (Base) 2.49 96.1   -  

I crea e Decre e I crea e Decr e
Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 2.41 2.57 1.64  1.74  
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 2.57 2.41 1.74  1.64  
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates) 2.28       3.10 1.54  2.10  
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 2.49       2.49 1.69  1.69  

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holdi
other assumptions constant, would have a ected the de ned ben  obligation by the amounts shown 
below:

 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
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32 Ma r  a al  of a  a d ab l e
(A) Ma r  a al  of a  a d ab l  a a  March 31, 2021  in crores

 21 hWralcraP.oN .lS
mo

Af er 12 
mo

T al

ASSETS
(1) F a c al a e
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 485.45  - 485.45 
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 35.15 17.76 52.91 
(c) Other receivables - -  
(d) Loans

- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets) 1,331.90  657.64  1,989.54  
- Securitised assets 12.29 0.83 13.12  

(e) Investments - 0.34 0.34  
(f) Other nancial assets 21.15 0.90 22.05  

-  
(2) N - a al e -  
(a) Current tax assets (net) - 1.37 1.37  
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) - 24.52 24.52  
(c) Property, plant and equipment - 5.78 5.78  
(d) Right to use assets - 0.84 0.84  
(e) Intangible assets - 1.94 1.94  
(f) Other non nancial assets 0.37 -                   0.37 

T al a 1,886.31  711.92  2,598.23  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(1) F a c al ab e
(a) Payables

(I) Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 
(ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 24.83 - 24.83

(II) Other payables - -
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -  
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 7.72 - 7.72 

(b) Borrowings
- Debt securities 125.12  43.73 168.85 
- Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,365.40  537.46  1,902.86  
- Subordinated liabilities 0.02 74.91 74.93  
- Financial liability towards securitisation 9.15 - 9.15 

(c) Other nancial liabilities 0.84 0.14 0.98 

(2) N - a al l ab e
(a) Provisions 1.52 4.33 5.85  
(b) Other non nancial liabilities 1.68 0.06 1.74  

(3) Eq
(a) Equity share capital - 7.19 7.19  
(b) Other equity - 394.13 394.13  

T al l ab l e  a d eq 1,536.28  1,061.95 2,598.23  
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(B) Ma r  a l of a d l ab  a  a  March 31, 2020 in crores
 21 hWralcraP.oN .lS

m h
A er 12 
m h

To al

ASSETS
(1) F a l e
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 80.20 - 80.20 
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 28.34 28.60 56.94 
(c) Other receivables - - -  
(d) Loans

- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets) 1,129.15  702.82  1,831.97  
- Securitised assets 84.67 9.93 94.60  

(e) Investments 45.02 0.34 45.36  
(f) Other nancial assets 11.86 0.74 12.60  

(2) N - a a e
(a) Current tax assets (net) - 4.48 4.48  
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 12.24 12.24  
(c) Property, plant and equipment 7.50 7.50  
(d) Right to use assets 1.61 1.61  
(e) Intangible assets 0.89 0.89  
(f) Other non- nancial assets 0.76 - 0.76 

To al a 1,380.00  769.15 2,149.15 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(1) F a l b l
(a) Payables

(I) Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 
(ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 22.35 - 22.35

(II) Other payables - - 
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 6.45 - 6.45

(b) Borrowings
- Debt securities 101.59  35.71 137.30 
- Borrowings (other than debt securities) 907.90  509.74  1,417.64  
- Subordinated liabilities 0.01 74.89 74.90  
- Financial liability towards securitisation 75.48 5.31 80.79  

(c) Other nancial liabilities 0.77 0.96 1.73  

(2) N - a a b l
(a) Provisions 1.16 3.07 4.23  
(b) Other non- nancial liabilities 1.49 0.68 2.17  

(3) E
(a) Equity share capital 7.19 7.19  
(b) Other equity 394.40  394.40  

To a  a  e 1,117.20  1,031.95     2,149.15  

All advances that have become NPA as at 31st March 2021 are classi  as non-current in accordance with Reserve Bank 
of India Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17
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33

Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of the below:

(a) serorc nitbed sa degdelwonkca ton ynapmoc eht tsniaga smialC

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMralcraP

Demand under Employee Provident Fund Act, 1952 0.25 0.25

(b) serorc niseetnaraug laicnanif gnidulcxe seetnarauG

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMralcraP

Indemnity undertaking given to Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited for insurance 
claims - 02.0  

34

34.1

34.2 To al lea ab l al ed  in crores
a D ed he follo c March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Rupees 0.98 1.73 
Foreign currency   -  -  

To al   0.98   1.73 

 in crores
b Ma  of e ab March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current 0.84 0.75 
Non-current 0.14   0.98 

To al 0.98   1.73 

34.3 The follo  amo were reco d p he ear:  in crores
Par lar March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 0.77 0.77 
Expense relating to variable lease payments - - 
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets 4.29 3.62 
Interest on lease liabilities 0.17 0.20 
To al rec  he om a   5.23   4.59 

34.4

 in crores
Ma l March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Less than 1 year 0.86 4.61 
Between 1 and 2 years 0.19 1.05 
Between 2 and  5 years - 
More than 5 years - 

To al 1.05 5.66 

34.5 The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021.
 in crores

Par lar March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance as at April 1, 2020 1.73 1.10 
Additions during the period (0.00) 1.30 
Finance cost incurred during the period 0.17 0.20 
Payment of lease liabilities (0.92) (0.87) 
B f March 31, 2021 0.98 1.73 

Note: Refer Note 9 for movement in right to use of assets.

property leases ranges from 1-10 years. The company has used an incremental borrowing rate of 11.84%  to determine the lease liability and 
right to use of asset for leases in 2019-20. There are no lease arrangements entered during the year
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35 Rela ed par ra o
Name  of he rela ed par  
Ultimate controlling party CreditAccess India NV
Holding Company Credit Access Grameen Limited
Subsidiary Company Madura Micro Education Private Limited
Company under common control Scisphere Analytics India Private Limited
Company under common control Scimergent Analytics and Education Private Ltd
Whole time Director (Till Mar 31, 2021)
Non-Executive Director (From Apr 1, 2021) Mr. F. S. Mohan Eddy
Independent Director Mr. N. C. Sarabeswaran
Independent Director & Chairman Mr. George Joseph
Non-Executive Director Mr. Paolo Brichetti
Non-Executive Director Mr. Ram Diwakar Boddupalli
Independent Director Mr. Manoj Kumar
Non-Executive Director Mr. Udaya Kumar Hebbar
Non-Executive Director (Till Mar 18, 2020) Mr. Ashok Mirza
Non-Executive Director (Till Mar 18, 2020) Mr. R Ramaraj
Independent Director (Till Mar 18, 2020) Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa
Independent Director (Till Mar 18, 2020) Mrs. Kavitha Vijay
Company secretary- Key Management Personnel (Till May 30 , 2020) Mr. Sanin Panicker
Company secretary- Key Management Personnel (From Feb 21, 2021) Mr. Ganesh Hegde
CFO-Key Management Personnel  (Till Jan 30, 2021) Mr. V. Balakrishnan
Managing Director-Key Management Personnel(Till Feb 21,2021)
Non-Executive Director (From Feb 22,2021) Ms. Tara Thiagarajan
CEO- Key Management Personnel (Till Feb 20, 2021) 
CEO & CFO-Key Management Personnel (From Feb 21,2021) Mr. M. Narayanan
Relative of Key Management Personnel Mrs. Pamela Mohan 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tra o  d  he r
Salar  a d perq  -
Ms Tara Thiagarajan 0.66 50.1  
Mr F S Mohan Eddy 0.79 52.1  
Mr M Narayanan 0.86 00.1  
Mr. V. Balakrishnan 0.63 75.0  
Mr. Sanin Panicker 0.01 80.0  
Mr. Ganesh Hegde 0.01 -  
Bala  a  he e f he r
Gratuity & earned leave payable - Mr M Narayanan * 0.24 -  
Incentives payable - 33.1  

K  Ma a eme  Per o elPar c la
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March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
S  fee
Mr. Ashok Mirza - 0.05 
Mr. George Joseph 0.08 - 
Mr. Manoj Kumar 0.06 - 
Mrs. Kavitha Vijay - 0.10 
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran 0.06 0.11 
Mr. R Ramaraj - 0.10 
Mrs. Siva Kameswari Vissa - 0.10 
Re  Pa d
Mrs. Pamela Mohan 0.18 0.18 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Prof o al char e
Scisphere Analytics India Private Limited 2.98 2.01 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tra o d he r
Purchase of intangibles 0.41 - 
Sitting fees paid for nominee directors 0.13 
Provision for expenses (Provided based on estimate awaiting invoice for cost 
sharing of manpower, IT infrastructure and IT maintenance)

0.64 -   

Bala ce a  he e f r
Amount due to holding company 0.48 - 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tra o  d  he r
Additional advance given 0.20 1.42 
Expenses reimbursed 0.06 0.20 
Deputation of sta 0.07 - 
Training Fees paid - 0.43 
Impairment expense recognised 0.20 -0.39 
Bala ce a  he e f r - - 
Amount due from subsidiary company 2.36 2.16 
Less Provision made 2.36 2.16 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
S  f  p ble
Mr. Ashok Mirza 0.03 
Mrs. Kavitha Vijay 0.04 
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran 0.06 
Mr. R Ramaraj 0.05 
Mrs. Siva Kameswari Vissa 0.05 

Par c la S b d ar  compa

Bala  a  he e f he r  O her rela ed par

Tra o d he r O her rela ed par e

Tra o d he r Compa der c c rol

Par c la Hold  compa

36Rev e from a w h o  in crores
Par r

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(A) T pe of rv

Service fees for management of assigned portfolio of loans 0.01 0.26 
Advertisement display income 2.24 4.31 
To 2.25 4.56 

(B) G h l mar  in crores
Par r

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
India 2.25 4.56 
Outside India - - 
To 2.25 4.56 

(C) T  of rev e reco  in crores
Par r

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Services transferred at a point in time 2.25 4.56 
Services transferred over time - - 
To 2.25 4.56 

For he ear 

For he ear 

For he ear 
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37

a. Capital to risk assets ratio ('CRAR'):
in crores

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

CRAR (%) 20.89% 23.01%
CRAR-Tier I Capital (%) 17.74% 19.53%
CRAR-Tier II Capital (%) 3.15% 3.48%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier II capital  45.03  55.00 
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments  Nil  Nil 

b. Investments in crores
0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

1. Value of Investments
(i) Gross value of investments

(a) in India  1.83  46.85 
(b) outside India  - - 

(ii) Provisions for depreciation
(a) in India  1.49  1.49 
(b) outside India  - - 

(iii) Net value of investments
(a) in India  0.34  45.36 
(b) outside India  - - 

2. Movement of provision held towards depreciation
(i) Opening balance  1.49  1.49 
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year  - - 
(iii) Less: Write-o / write-back of excess provision  - - 
(iv) Closing balance  1.49  1.49 

c. Derivatives

d. Disclosure related to securitization

in crores
0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitization transactions 2 8 
Amount of securitized assets as per books of SPV sponsored by NBFC 15.77 98.51 

Amount of exposures retained by NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet

a. O -balance sheet exposure
 First loss Nil Nil
 Others Nil Nil

b. On-balance sheet exposure
First loss – cash collateral 3.48 16.00 
Others 6.30 28.40 

Amount of exposures other than MRR  Nil Nil
a. O -balance sheet exposure

i. Exposure to own securitizations
 First loss Nil Nil
 Loss Nil Nil

ii. Exposure to third party transactions
 First loss Nil Nil
 Others Nil Nil

b. On-balance sheet exposure
i. Exposure to own securitizations

 Others Nil Nil
ii. Exposure to third party transactions

 First loss Nil Nil
 Others Nil Nil

Disclosures pursuant to the Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Company-Systematically Important
Non- Deposit taking Company  and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016 as amended from time to time ('the  Master Directions') 

Note:
Impairment allowance on Stage 1 loans has been considered as ‘contingent provision for standard asset’ for the purpose
of determining Tier II capital;

During the year the Company has not transferred loans through securitization.

The Company has no transactions / exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year.
The Company has no unhedged foreign currency exposure as on March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: Nil).
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f. Details of securitisation and assignment transactions:

in crores

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Number of loans assigned 75,413 170,456 
Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 125.53 247.31 
Aggregate consideration 125.53 247.31 
Income recognised in Statement of Pro t or Loss. 9.68 38.43 

g. Details of non-performing nancial asset purchased / sold:
The Company has not purchased / sold any non-performing nancial assets in the current and previous year.

The Company has undertaken no securitisation and one assignment transaction during the current year
(March 31, 2020: four assignment transactions and four securitisation transactions).

Note: The above are securitisation and assignment transactions during the year.

The Company has not sold any nancial asset to securitization / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction in the
current and previous year.

e. Details of nancial assets sold to securitization / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction:
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Madura Micro Finance Limited

i. Exposures:
Exposure to Real estate

A. Direct exposure

(i) Residential Mortgages - 0.18 0.26 

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential 
property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or 
that is rented; (All loans are under Rs XX)

(ii) Commercial Real Estate - Nil Nil

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real 

non-fund based (NFB) limits; Nil Nil

a. Residential Nil Nil

b. Commercial Real Estate. Nil Nil

B. Indirect Exposure Nil Nil

(HFCs) Nil Nil

0.18 0.26   

Exposure to Capital Market

CIN No.U65929TN2005PLC057390
N-07.00754
20
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Particulars
Rat revious 

Borrowing limit /
conditions 

(  in crores)

Debentures
ICRA Ltd 31-12-2020

A- placed on watch

implication
25.00                  30-06-2022

Debentures
ICRA Ltd 23-12-2020

A- placed on watch

implication
37.50 23-04-2024

Debentures
CARE 29-10-2019

BBB+ (Under Credit 

Implications) 
36.00 29-05-2023

Debentures
ICRA Ltd 17-08-2020

A- placed on watch

implication
50.00 17-02-2022

Debentures
ICRA Ltd 13-08-2020

A- placed on watch

implication
15.00 16-08-2021

Debentures 

ICRA Ltd 30-03-2017
A- placed on watch

implication
50.00 29-03-2024

ICRA Ltd 18-12-2020
A- placed on watch

implication
30-11-2021

Long term – Unallocated ICRA Ltd 18-12-2020
A- placed on watch

implication
93.81 30-11-2021

 in crores

Particulars

60.43 8.09 

13.00 30.01 
1.04 0.76 
1.04 0.58 

Total 75.51 39.44 

Valid up to
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There has been no draw down from reser es during the year ended March 31  2021 (pre ious year: Nil).

 in crores
Particulars

*

Total ad ances to twenty largest borrowers 2.07     1.82 
(%) of ad ancesto twenty largest borrowers to total
ad ances 0.10% 0.09%

Total e posure to twenty largest borrowers customers 2.07                      1.82 
(%) of e posures to twentylargest borrowers
customers to total e posure 0.10% 0.09%

Total E posure to top four NPA accounts 0.21        0.17 

Particulars

3.61% 1.07%

MSME 0.66% 0.52%

Corporate borrowers 0.00% 0.00%

0.39% 0.00%
Others

Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00%

Auto loans NA NA 

Other personal loans 0.03% NA 

 in crores

Opening balance 31.69 17.11 
Additions during the year 131.62 86.23 
Reductions during the year (64.24) (71.65) 
Closing balance 99.07 31.69 

Opening balance 11.43 6.57 
Additions during the year 85.36 76.51 
Reductions during the year (64.24) (71.65) 
Closing balance 32.55 11.43 

Opening balance 20.25 10.54 
46.27 9.71 

- - 
Closing balance 66.52 20.25 
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a. No. of complaints pendingat the beginning of the
year 0 0

167 

c. No. of complaints redressed during the year 167 
d. No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 0 0

 in crores

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Instances of fraud reported during the year ended March 31  2020:

Marc Marc

20.12% 21.34%

10.69% 11.36%

Net interest margin (a-b) 9.43% 9.98%

rticulars 

 in crores

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

-

statements.
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Madura Micro Finance Limited

u. Public disclosure on Liquidity risk management

i.

counterparties
Amount ( Rs. in Crore) % of Total Deposits % of Total

Liabilities
25  1,995.18 NA 90.82%

ii.

iii.

Amount (Rs in Crore) % of Total Borrowings

730.35            33.88%

iv.

Name of the instrument/ product Amount (  in Crore) % of Total Liabilities
Term loans from Banks 1,141.07 51.94%
Term Loans from Financial Institutions 344.28 15.67%
Non Convertible debentures 218.87 9.96%
Term Loans from Non banking Financial Companies 442.42 20.14%

v. Stock Ratios

Particulars
as a % of total public 

funds*
as a % of total 

liabilities*
as a % of total 

assets

Commercial papers 0% 0% 0%
Non-convertible debentures
(original maturity of less than one year) 0% 0% 0%

Other short-term liabilities 16.72% 1.67% 1.41%

orrowings)

Top 20 large deposits (amount in Rs. Crore and % of total deposits)-

Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs. Crore and % of total borrowings)

Funding concentration based on signi nt instrument / product*

The Company’s Board of Directors has the overall responsibility of management of liquidity risk. The 
Board decides the strategic policies and procedures of the Company to manage liquidity risk in 
accordance with the risk tolerance/limits decided by it. 
The Company also has a Risk Management Committee, which is a sub-committee of the Board and is 
responsible for evaluating the overall risk faced by the Company including liquidity risk.   
Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the Company is responsible ensuring adherence to the 
risk tolerance/limits as well as implementing the liquidity risk management strategy of the Company. 
*Notes
"1. A  counterparty” is  as a single counterparty or group of connected or

counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and
10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs."
2. A  instrument/product" is  as a single instrument/product of group of similar
instruments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total
liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.
"3. Total Liabilities has been computed as sum of all liabilities (Balance Sheet  less Equities and
Reserves/Surplus."
4. “Public funds" shall include funds raised either directly or indirectly through public deposits, commer-
cial paper, debentures, inter-corporate deposits and bank  but excludes funds raised by issue of
instruments compulsorily convertible into equity shares within a period not exceeding 10 years from the
date of issue as  in Regulatory Framework for Core Investment Companies issued vide
No. DNBS (PD) CC.No. 206/03.10.001/2010-11 dated January 5, 2011.

vi. Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

Not applicable. The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking 
Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India does not accept public deposits.
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Notes

 in crores
Particulars
Liabilities side :

1)
Loans and advances availed by the non-banking cial  
company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

 Amount 
Outstanding  

 Amount
Overdue 

 Amount
Overdue 

 Amount 
Outstanding  

(a) Debentures : Secured 153.84 -     137.30 - 
       :       Unsecured 65.02 -     50.02 - 

(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits) -    - - - 
(b) Deferred Credits - - - - 
(c) Term Loans 1,927.77 -     1,442.50 - 
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - - - 
(e) Commercial Paper - - - - 
(f) Other Loans (Working Capital Loans from Banks) 9.15 -    80.80 - 

 in crores

2021 2020

2)  Amount 
Outstanding 

 Amount 
Outstanding 

0.14 0.25 
2,002.52  1,926.32 

3)

- - 
- - 

- - 
- - 

- - 
- - 

4)

- - 
- - 
- - 
- 45.02 
- -
- -

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

0.34 0.34 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

(a) Secured 

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraM

Assets side :
Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (4) below] :

(b) Loans other than (a) above

(b) Unsecured

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other
assets counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(a) Financial lease
(b) Operating lease
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

Break-up of Investments :
Current Investments :

1. Quoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)
2. Unquoted :

(iv) Government Securities

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Certi cate of Deposits and Commercial Paper)

Long Term investments :
1. Quoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)

(v) Others (please specify)
2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds

x. Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Finan-
cial Company- Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016
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Notes

 in crores
Particulars

5) Borrower group-wise cl ion
 of assets nanced as in (2) and (3) above :

Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - -  - - -  
(b) Companies in the same group - - -  - - -  
(c) Other related parties - - -  - - -  
2. Other than related parties 0.14 2,002.52  2,002.66  0.25  1,926.32  1,926.57   
Total 0.14 2,002.52  2,002.66  0.25  1,926.32  1,926.57   

6) Investor group-wise classi cation
of all investments (current and long term) 
in shares and securities
(both quoted and unquoted):

Category
 Market Value / 
Break up or fair 

value or NAV 

 Book Value (Net 
of Provisions) 

Market Value / 
Break up or fair 

value or NAV

Book Value (Net 
of Provisions)

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - -  - 
(b) Companies in the same group - - -  - 
(c) Other related parties - - -  - 
2. Other than related parties 0.34 0.34 45.36  45.36 
Total 0.34 0.34 45.36  45.36 

7) Other information
Particulars Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties 2.36  2.36 2.16  2.16 
(b) Other than related parties 99.07  99.07  31.69  31.69  

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties - - -  - 
(b) Other than related parties 32.55  32.55  11.43  11.43  

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Notes:

y. Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Company- Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 (continued)

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraM

Category Amount net of provisions

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Amount net of provisions

March 31, 2020March 31, 2021

Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed by Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued by ICAI
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38 Financial instruments – fair values

38.1 Accounting classi tion and fair values:

 in crores

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Loans (measured at amortised cost) 2,002.65   -  2,036.54 - 1,926.58 - 1,958.47 -  
Investments (measured at FVTPL) 0.34   -  - 0.34  45.36 45.02  - 0.34 
Total 2,002.99 -  2,036.54 0.34 1,971.94 45.02  1,958.47 0.34 

in crores

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Debt securities 168.85 170.74 137.30 140.24 
Borrowings other than debt securities 1,902.86  -  1,910.47 - 1,417.64 - 1,428.06 -  
Subordinated liabilities 74.93 -  87.69 - 74.90 - 85.09 -  

Total 2,146.64 -  2,168.90 - 1,629.84 - 1,653.39 -  

Carrying 
amount

Carrying 
amount

Fair value of ancial liabilities 
measured at amortised cost

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraM

Fair value

eulav riaFeulav riaF

Financial assets 
0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraM

Carrying 
amount

Fair value Carrying 
amount

Fair value hierarchy 
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). 
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

their short-term nature.

100



-

-

-

-

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements101



Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

indicator

102



-

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements103



39.2  Impairment assessment

2,563.40 

2,189.32 

2,121.67 

1,741.17 

2,076.65 

1,741.17 

 45.02

2,563.40 

 2,189.32 

Liabilities

Assets

Assets

Non-traded Primary risk sensitivity 
risk

Traded
risk

Carrying
amount

Wednesday 31.03.2021

Non-traded Primary risk sensitivity 
risk

Traded
risk

Carrying
amount

Tuesday  31.03.2020
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 2,002.66  1,926.58 

 31.03.2021  31.03.2020
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 :ksir ycnerruc ngieroF 3.93

 ytivitisnes etar tseretnI

 stniop sisaB 
                         12-0202 raey eht  02-9102 raey eht 

1,631.57 3.89  512.16  2,147.63 

31.03.2020 
 As at 

31.03.2021 
 As at  Cash  Changes in  Exchnage  Others 

31.03.2019 
 As at 

31.03.2020 
 As at  Cash  Changes in  Exchnage  Others    

-
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31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

 issued 

-
-
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 230.00 

 151.12 

21.50 

 ` in crores 
As at As at

March 31, 2021 31.03.2020 

 days 

 139.63  117.33  435.12  802.13 2,368.21  12.94    670.82  39.12 

 1 to 2    2 to 3    
       shtnom                           shtnom

     6 ot 3 1 to 3 
years       shtnom
    shtnom 6
   raey 1 ot

Over 5 3 to 5    
 sraey        sraey 

Liquidity assessment as on March 31, 2020 

 days 

 98.83  87.29  365.90  577.08  1,916.82 28.50 73.63    563.23     

  1 to 2    2 to 3    
        shtnom

1 to 3 
                           shtnom

    6 ot 3
years      shtnom
     shtnom 6
   raey 1 ot

Over   3 to 5   5
 sraey      sraey  
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109



-
-

cantly increased 

46

47

48

49

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements110



50

51

As per our report of even date.

 Udaya Kumar Hebbar  F. S. Mohan Eddy 

 Ganesh Hegde   
Company Secretary 

Director   

M. Narayanan

 Director 

Chartered Accountants.

Firm Registration No:003990S / S200018.

S. Narasimhan .

(Membership No : 206047)

Place: Chennai
Date: 26th April 2021

Partner

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP.

-

-

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements111



Financial Statements

MADURA
Micro Education



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



Balance Sheet

Chennai
Date: 26.04.2021

120



Chennai
Date: 26.04.2021

121



Chennai
Date: 26.04.2021

122



Madura Micro Education Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 

1. Corporate information
The Company is a private limited company registered under the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identification No.

U80301TN2013PTC091745. The Company is engaged in the business of providing Skill development training to Micro

entrepreneurs and others. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Madura Micro Finance Limited (CIN

U65929TN2005PLC057390). In turn, Madura Micro Finance Limited is a subsidiary of Credit Acces Grameen Limited (CIN

L51216KA1991 PLC053425 ).

1.1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and notified under 

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)[Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended till date)] and other relevant provisions of the Act. The financial 

statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest crores, except when 

otherwise indicated. The company does not have any operations or business activity post March 31, 2021. Pursuant to 

the meeting of Board of Directors held on January 22, 2021, the Company is planning to file a strike off application before 

registrar of companies under Section 248(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 after complying with the applicable conditions. 

Since, there is a lack of future plan for operations and basis the resolution passed by the Board of Directors in the 

meeting dated January 22, 2021, these financial statements are prepared on a "not for going concern" basis. The 

Company is dependent upon its holding company for financial support 

New and amended standards and interpretation 

a) Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Substitution of the definition of term 'Material'

b) Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - In order to maintain consistency with
Ind AS 1, the respective changes have been made to Ind AS 8 also.

c) Ind AS 10 Events after the Reporting Period - Clarification on the disclosures requirements to be made in case of a
material non- adjusting event.

d) Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - In order to maintain consistency with the amendments made in other Ind AS,
respective changes have been made to Ind AS 34.

e) Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Clarification on the accounting treatment for
restructuring plans.

f) Ind AS 103 Business Combination - Detailed guidance on term 'Business' and 'Business Combination' along with
providing an Optional test to identify concentration of Fair Value.

g) Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Clarification on certain disclosures to be made in respect of
uncertainty arising from interest rate benchmark reforms.

h) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - Clarification on temporary exceptions from applying specific hedge accounting
requirements along with providing guidance on transition for hedge accounting.

i) Ind AS 116 Leases - Clarification on whether rent concessions as a direct consequence of COVID- 19 pandemic can
be accounted as lease modification or not.

None of these amendments has any effect on the Company's financial statements

New Standards notified but not effective 

None 
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1.2 Presentation of financial statements 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle. 

The normal operating cycle is taken as 12 months. The Company generally reports financial assets and financial 

liabilities on a gross basis in the balance sheet. They are offset and reported on a net basis only when Ind AS 

specifically permits the same or the company has an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised 

amounts not contingent on a future event. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same 

on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS specifically. 

1.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

"The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and 

judgements. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of items, it is 

possible that the outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the Management's 

estimates are based. Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various line items in the financial statements 

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and judgements. In 

view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of items, it is possible that the 

outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the Management's estimates are based. 

Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various line items in the financial statements 

2.1 Presentation of financial statements 

The fees recceiable in respect of courses conducted is reckoned on accrual basis on the basis of the courses 

conducted during the year. Other income is accounted for on accrual basis. 

2.2 Finance cost 

Borrowing cost on financial liabilities are recognised by applying the Effective interest rate (EIR). 

2.3 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term investments with an original maturity 

of three months or less, that are readily convertible to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

2.4 Property, plant and equipment ('PPE') 

Initial Recognition and measurement: 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Costs comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other 

than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), any attributable expenditure on making the assets ready for 

intended use. 

2.5 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties 

and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization 

criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. 

2.6 Depreciation and amortization 

2.6.1 Depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under 

construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method as per the useful life 

given in Schedule II except the following cases where it is depreciated as per the useful lives estimated by 

management. 
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23 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities  in rupees

23 (a)Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021

Sr. 
No. Particulars  Within 12 months  After 12 months Total

ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant And Equipment -     -     -     
(b) Capital Work In Progress -     -     -     
(c) Intangible Assets -     -     -     
(2) Current Assets
(f) Financial Assets

(a) Trade Receivables -     -     -     
(b) Cash And Cash Equivalents 445,408     -     445,408   
(c) Other Receivables 20,541      -    20,541    

(g) Oher Current Asssets
(a) Current tax assets (net) -     -     -   

(h) Other non- nancial assets -     -     -     
Total assets 465,949     -     465,949   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

(a) Equity share capital -   14,900,000   14,900,000        
(b) Other equity -   -38,134,642 -38,134,642       

LIABILITIES
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Other Payables -     -     -     
(b) Provisions -     -     -     

23,612,091 -      23,612,091  

- -     -     

- -    

88,500 88,500     

- -    

(c) Other Financial Liabilities -  -     -     
(b) Other Current Liabilities

(a) Current tax liabilities (net) -     -     -     
(b) Provisions -     -     -     
(c) Other non- nancial liabilities -     -     -     

Total Equity and Liability 23,700,591   -23,234,642 465,949   

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(a) Borrowings
(b) Payables
(I) Trade payables

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - Total outstanding dues
of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises
(II) Other payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
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23 (b)Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020

Sr. 
No.

Particulars  Within 12 months  After 12 months Total

ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant And Equipment -   578,370    578,370    
(b) Capital Work In Progress -   - -     
(c) Intangible Assets - - -     
(2) Current Assets
(f) Financial Assets

(a) Trade Receivables -     -    -     
(b) Cash And Cash Equivalents 359,456     -     359,456   
(c) Other Receivables 20,727      -    20,727    

(g) Oher Current Asssets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 434,352     -     434,352   

(h) Other non- nancial assets -     -    -   
Total assets 814,535     578,370       1,392,905   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

(a) Equity share capital -   14,900,000   14,900,000        
(b) Other equity -   -36,388,950 -36,388,950       

LIABILITIES
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Other Payables -     -    -     
(b) Provisions -   401,593    401,593    
(2) Current Liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings 21,277,174    -     21,277,174  
(b) Payables
(I) Trade payables

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises - Total outstanding dues
of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(II) Other payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

-     -    -     

-     - -        

284,209        284,209    

-       - -        

(c) Other Financial Liabilities 635,943     -     635,943   
(b) Other Current Liabilities

(a) Current tax liabilities (net) -     -     -     
(b) Provisions 159,185     -     159,185   
(c) Other non- nancial liabilities 123,751     -     123,751   

Total Equity and Liability 22,480,262   -21,087,357 1,392,905  

 in rupees
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24 Contingent liabilities

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

Nil

25 Capital commitments

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

Nil

26 Leases

Operating Lease

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

Minimum lease obligations
Not later than one year - 384,444.00 
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - 251,499.00 
Later than 5 years - -

Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of
capital advances) and not provided:

premises are generally rented on cancellable term for period of eleven to sixty months with no 
escalation clause and renewable at the option of the Company.

There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no subleases. Lease 

payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

27 Related party transactions  in rupees

Names of the related parties (as per IndAS – 24)

Holding Company Madura Micro Finance Ltd

1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP March 31, 2020

Amount due to Holding Company  23,612,091  21,612,091 
Training fees from SHG - 4,285,760
Deputation of Sta  747,537  - 
Expenses Reimbursed  560,349  2,005,927 
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28 Risk Management

28.1 Introduction and risk pro e

28.1a Risk management structure

Market Risk

Credit Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Operational Risk

In ation Risk

Risk management structure

Madura Mirco Education Private Limited is the business of creating awareness of
micro nance borrowers by running training programs.

We are exposed to various types of market risks during the normal course of business such 
as credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, cash management risk, asset 

The risk mitigation is planned using the following key strategies:

Risk Avoidance: By not performing an activity that could carry risk. Avoidance may seem the 
answer to all risks, but avoiding risks also means losing out on the potential gain that accepting 
(retaining) the risk may have allowed.

Risk Transfer: Mitigation by having another party to accept the risk, either partial or total, 
typically by contract or by hedging.

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur on receivables. Our business size and volume is 

We are subject to interest rate risk, on our borrowings . However we borrow from our 

Operational risks arise from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or 
from external events. We control our operational risk by maintaining a comprehensive 
system of internal controls .  Our team also manages compliance with requirements set forth 
by regulatory bodies and our internal standards.

a higher operating cost, which could impact the results of our operations.However we borrow at 

Risk assessments are conducted for all business activities. The assessments are to address 
potential risks and to comply with relevant legal and regulatory requirements. Risk assessments 
are performed by competent personnel from individual departments and risk management 
department including, where appropriate, expertise from outside the Company. Procedures are 
established to update risk assessments at appropriate intervals and to review these assessments 
regularly. Based on the Risk Control and Self Assessment (RCSA), the Company formulates its Risk 
Management Strategy / Risk Management plan on annual basis. The strategy will broadly entail 
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 in rupees

Risk Reduction: Employing methods/solutions that reduce the severity of the loss.

Risk Retention: Accepting the loss when it occurs. Risk retention is a viable strategy for small 
risks where the cost of insuring against the risk would be greater over time than the total 
losses sustained. All risks that are not avoided or transferred are retained by default. This 
includes risks that are so large or catastrophic that they either cannot be insured against or 
the premiums would be infeasible.

Total market risk exposure28 b

Assets
Cash & Cash equivalents 445,408                445,408 359,456 359,456 
Other receivables 20,541                   20,541 20,727 20,727 

Liabilities
Other payables - - -     - 
Borrowings 23,612,091           23,612,091 21,277,174 21,277,174 

Tuesday, March 31, 2020Wednesday, March 31, 2021
Carrying
amount

Traded
risk

Non-traded
risk

Carrying
amount

Traded
risk

Non-traded
risk

29 Earnings per share (EPS)

The following re s the pr  / loss after tax and equity share data used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations:

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

49.196,547,1- ssol dna tiforp fo tnemetats rep sa xat retfa )ssol( /tiforp teN      2,152,181.84  
Net pro t/ (loss) as above for calculation of basic EPS and diluted EPS 
(  in crores) -1,745,691.94 2,152,181.84   
Add: Interest on debentures convertible into equity shares (net of tax)
(  in crores)

- -  

Net pro t/ (loss) for calculation of diluted EPS (  in crores) -1,745,691.94 2,152,181.84  
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 1,490,000.00 1,490,000.00         

-POSE rednu detnarg snoitpo kcotS     -  
7 1,490,000.00 1,490,000.00   

71.1-erahs rep sgninraE      1.44  
Dilutive earnings per share# -1.17 1.44  
Nominal value per share

Signatures to Schedules & Notes

Chennai Tara Thiagarajan F S Mohan Eddy
Date: 26.04.2021 Director Director
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We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of Madura Micro Finance Limited (hereinafter referred to
as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of and Loss, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash Statement for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated statements, including a summary of accounting policies and other explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the reports of
other auditor on the  
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (The “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and the
consolidated loss , the consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash for the year ended on that

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
 To the Members of Madura Micro Finance Limited

 Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion 

Basis for Opinion

Emphasis of Matter

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) under section 143(10) of the Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
ICAI, and we have our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules made there under, and we have our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is and appropriate to provide a basis for our

We draw your attention to Note 47 to the consolidated statements about the uncertainties prevailing on the
balance sheet date on the recoverability of the Group’s loans and advances on account of the COVID-19 The estimates
and assumptions made by management in determining the impairment provision required for these loans are subject to
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most in our audit of the
consolidated statements for the year ended 31’st March These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

Timely iden and of the impaired
loans, and 

Determination of probability of defaults (PD) and
estimation of loss given defaults (LGD) based on the
value of collaterals and relevant factors 

of assets to stage 1, 2, or 3 
in increase in credit risk' (“SICR”)

and 'default' categories) using criteria in accordance with
Ind AS 109 which also include considering the impact of
recent RBI’s Covid-19 regulatory circulars; 
Accounting interpretations, modelling assumptions and
data used to build and run the models; 
Measurement of borrowers’ provisions including Covid-
19 impact assessment of multiple economic scenarios; 
Inputs and Judgements used in determination of
Management overlay at various asset stages considering
the current uncertain economic environment with the
range of possible unknown to the country arising
out of the COVID 19 Pandemic and

Provision for expected credit loss (ECL) on loans (Refer note

Management estimates impairment provision using
Expected Credit loss model for the loan 
Measurement of loan impairment involves application of

judgement by the The 
judgements are: 

The estimation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on 

Following are points with increased level of audit focus:

The disclosures made in Financial Statements for ECL
especially in relation to judgements and estimates by the

Read and assessed the Company's accounting policy for
impairment of assets and its compliance with Ind
AS 109, the governance framework approved by the Board
of Directors and moratorium pursuant to the RBI circular
and tested the implementation of such policy on a sample

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on their
past-due status to check compliance with requirement of
Ind AS Tested a sample of performing loans (stage 1) to
assess whether any SICR or loss indicators were present
requiring them to be under stage 2 or 3 or vice
versa along with additional considerations applied by the
Management for staging of loans as SICR or default

Tested the input data used for grouping and staging of loan
portfolio into various categories and default buckets for
determining the PD and LGD Also, agreed the input

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic factors

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL

Assessed disclosures included in the standalone Ind AS
statements in respect of expected credit losses

including the disclosures made with regard to the
management's evaluation of the uncertainties arising from

Key Audit Matter
 

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed

Auditors’ Report
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The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors report / the management report, chairman’s statement and business responsibility report

Our opinion on the consolidated statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

In connection with our audit of the consolidated statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially When we read the reports, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated 
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
position, consolidated performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards under
section 133 of the The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal controls, that were operating for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of

In preparing the consolidated statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the reporting

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it e Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to the economic decisions of users taken on the

Auditors’ Report
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumst Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Holding Company, its subsidiary company which is a company incorporated in Indiahave adequate internal

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast doubt on
the ability of the Group to continue as a going If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated cial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

Obtain appropriate audit evidence regarding the information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated We are responsible for the direction, supervision

which we are the independent For the other entities included in the consolidated ncial statements, which have
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied  with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
in the audit of the consolidated statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 

We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest of such

Auditors’ Report
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We did not audit the ancial statements of the subsidiary whose statements total assets of and net
assets of cras at 31 March 2020, total revenues of Niland net cash amounting to for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated These statements have been audited by
another auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 and sub-section (11) of Section 197 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is

Our opinion on the consolidated statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of other auditor on separate
statements and other information of the subsidiary as noted in the ‘Other matters’ paragraph, we report, to

the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated statements comply with the Accounting Standards under

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the auditor of the subsidiary company, none of
the directors of the Group is as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section of

its subsidiary company incorporated in India and the operating of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor as also the other information of the subsidiary, as noted
in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

The consolidated statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated position of

Other Matters

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Auditors’ Report
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There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection

h) As required by Section of the Act, we report that the remuneration paid by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
company incorporated in India to its directors is in accordance with the prescribed provisions and the remuneration paid to
every director is within the limit under Section 197except for Central Government approval yet to be received for
appointment and payment of remuneration to erstwhile Managing Director for the period from Oct 2013 to Sep Refer

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants

S Narasimhan
Partner

Chennai
26 04 2021
UDIN:21206047AAAABU2778
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In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated statements of Madura Micro Finance Limited (hereinafter referred
to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal controls over

reporting of the Holding Company and another auditor has audited its subsidiary company which is a company

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of

Limited
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company which is a company incorporated in India,

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal controls that were
operating for ensuring the orderly and conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable information, as required under the

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal controls over reporting based
on our We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal cial controls, both issued by the

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal controls over reporting were established

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal controls system
over financial reporting and their operating Our audit of internal controls over reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal controls over reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating of internal control based on the assessed

The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal l controls system over reporting of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company which is a

Annexure A
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A company's internal control over reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of reporting and the preparation of statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting A company's internal control over reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

Other Matters

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal controls over reporting, including the possibility of collusion or

projections of any evaluation of the internal ncial controls over reporting to future periods are subject to the risk

In our opinion, the Holding Company, and its subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal controls system over reporting and such internal controls over

the internal control over reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating of the internal 
controls over reporting insofar as it relates to the subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, is
based on the corresponding report of the other a

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants

S Narasimhan
Partner

Chennai
26 04 2021
UDIN:21206047AAAABU2778
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ASSETS
(1) Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

 

(c) Loans
- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
- Securitised assets

(d) Investments
(e) Other assets

(a) Current tax assets (net)
(b) Deferred tax assets (net)
(c) Property, plant and equipment
(d) Right to use assets

  

(e) Other intangible assets

TOTAL ASSETS

 

 
 
 
 
 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

(a) Derivative Financial Instruments
(b) Payables

(I) Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro

 enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(II) Other payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(c) Borrowings
- Debt securities
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
- Subordinated liabilities
- Financial liability towards securitisation

4
5
6

7
8 

29D
29C

9
9
9

10

 485.49 
 52.91 

 1,989.54 
 13.12 
 0.34 

 22.05 

 1.37 
 24.52 
 5.78 
 0.84 
 1.94 
 0.37 

 24.83 

 7.73 

 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 

 15 

 168.85 
 1,902.86 

 74.93 
 9.15 

 0.98 

 137.30 
 1,417.64 

 74.90 
 80.79 

 1.79 

 6.48 

 22.32 

 80.24 
 56.94 

 1,831.97 

 45.36 
 12.60 

94.60 
 4.52 

12.24 
 7.50 
 1.66 
 0.89 
 0.76 

 2,598.27  2,149.29 

Consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2021 

Balance Sheet

Note
 No.

As At
31.03.2021

As At
31.03.2020
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(2) 
(a) Current tax liabilities (net)
(b) Provisions

Other liabilities
(3) Equity

(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

16  5.85  4.29 
 1.74  2.18 17

18
19

 7.19 
 394.17 

 2,598.27 

 7.19 
 394.41 

 2,149.29 

Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018 

S.Narasimhan
(Partner)
Membership No.206047

Chennai 
26.04.2021

Udaya Kumar Hebbar
 Director

 F. S. Mohan Eddy 
 Director

M. Narayanan Ganesh Hegde
Company Secretary

&
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(a) Interest income
- Interest on loans
- Income on securitisation
- Income from portfolio purchased under assignment

 - Interest on deposits with banks and 
 institutions

(b) Fees and commission
(c) Sale of Service
(d) Dividend income
(e) Net gain on fair value changes
(f) Bad debt recovery
(g) Others

II Other income

III Total income (I+II)

IV  Expenses
(a) Finance costs

- On borrowings
- On  liability towards securitisation

(d) 
(e)
(f )

 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses 
Other expenses 

Total expenses (IV) 

V 
VI 

Tax expense
(1) Current tax 

i. Current year
ii. Pertaining to earlier years

(2) Deferred tax
Total tax expense (VI)
VII  

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
27
28
29

30

 392.25 
 12.96 
 0.75  
 6.66 
 0.01 

 2.26 
 4.45 

 13.59 
 432.93 

 2.36 

 435.29 

 185.76 
 4.39 
 0.17 

 124.46 
 80.39 

 4.27 
 35.32  44.34 

 434.76 

 0.53 

 13.00 

 (12.27) 
 0.73 

 (0.20) 

 414.98 
 27.59 
 7.36 
 5.01 
 0.26 
 0.16 
 0.41 
 2.51 
 2.87 

 10.36 
 471.51 

 4.39 

 475.90 

 185.33 
 9.96 
 0.20 

 57.14 
 67.41 

 5.11 

 369.49 

 106.41 

 30.01  
 (1.74) 
 (1.53)
 26.74 

 79.67 

Note
 No.

Tuesday,
31.03.2021

 For the year ended
Sunday,

31.03.2020
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As per our report of even date
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018 

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

S.Narasimhan
(Partner)
Membership No.206047

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Udaya Kumar Hebbar
 Director

 F. S. Mohan Eddy 
 Director

Chennai 
26.04.2021

M. Narayanan Ganesh Hegde
Company Secretary

Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018 

&

VIII  Other comprehensive income
 to  or loss

 (0.05)   (0.29) 

(2) Income tax relating to items that will not be
 to  0.01  0.07 

Subtotal (a)  (0.04)   (0.22)
(b)  Items that will be  to  or loss

- Net change in fair value of loans measured at  - -
fair value through other comprehensive income

(2) Income tax relating to items that will be  - -
 to 

Subtotal (b)  -   -   
Other comprehensive income (VIII = a+b)  (0.04)  (0.22) 

IX  
comprehensive income for the year) 

 (0.24)  79.46 

X  Earnings per equity share (face value of ` 10.00 
each)
Basic  (0.27)  110.74 
Diluted  (0.27)  110.74 

(a)  Items thatwill not be 
- Re measuremen t ( losses) and gains on 

 o  bligations (ne t)

  or loss

  or loss

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements153



Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Cash Flow

For the year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

 before tax  0.53  106.41 

Interest income on loan s  (393.00)  (422.34)
Income on securitisatio n  (12.96)  (27.59)
Depreciation and amortisatio  ns  4.27  5.11 
Interest expense on borrowin gs  185.93  185.53 
Interest expenses  on  liability towards securitisation  4 .39   9.96 
Impairmen t on  instruments  60 .22  8.47 
Net gain  on  instruments at fair value through  or loss   (11.95)   (1.2.8 7)
Dividend Incom e  (0.16)

 (163.10)  (253.88)  

Interest received on loan s  369.03  423.29 
Interest received on loans securitis ed  13.31  27.20 
Interest paid on borrowin  gs  (182.02)  (184.92)
Interest on  liability towards securitisation  (4.50)   (10.05)

Working capital changes: 
Increase / decrease in derivative  instruments   (0.07)
(Increase) / decrease in loa ns  (184.90)  (135.67)
Increase/decrease in securitised asse ts  81.90  51.91 
(Increase) / decrease in bank balance other than cash and cash equiv alents  4.03  (1.94)
Increase in other  assets   (9.45)   (4.67)
(Increase) / decrease in other  assets  0.3 9  (0 .55)
Increase in trade and other payab les  3.75  12.81 
Increase / (decrease) in other  liabilities  (0. 81)   0.59 
Increase / (decrease) in provisio ns  1.51  0.93 

(increase) /  d ecrease) i  n o ther li abilities  (0. 45)  0 .84 
 (1 04.03)  (75.83)

Income tax pai d  (9.85)  (34.91)
 (80.64)  (2.68)

Purchase of property, plant and equipm ent  (1.45)  (7.81)
Purchase of Intangible asse ts  (1.32)  (0.39)
Purchase of investments at fair value through  and loss   (1,006.30)   (1,422.25)
Sale of investments  at fair value through  and loss   1,053.58   1,389.90 

  44.51  (40.55)
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Cash Flow

Debt securities (repaid) / issued (net)  27.58  (15.60)
Borrowings other than debt securities (repaid)/ issued (net)  485.33  36.90 
Subordinated liabilities (repaid) / issued (net)  0.00  25.00  -  
Financial liability towards securitisation (net)  (71.53)  (56.99)

 441.38  (10.69) 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  405.26  (53.92) 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  80.23  134.15 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  485.49  80.23 

Cash and cash equivalents consists of  
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 4)    485.49    80.24 
Cash credit (refer note 11)  (0.01)

Total   485.49  80.23 

The accompanying notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of  statements

For Madhura Micro Finance Limited

F . S Mohan EddyPlace : Chennai
Date : 26.04.2021 Director
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Madura Micro Finance Limited (“the Company”), headquartered in Chennai, is a Company incorporated on 02.09.2005
under Companies Act, 1956 and registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-deposit accepting Non-Banking
Financial Company (NBFC-ND) with from 28.02.2006. The Company got clas as a Non-Banking Financial
Company - Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI) 11.12.2013. Some of the company’s debentures are listed in
Bombay Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to the execution of Share Purchase Agreements dated 27th November 2019 by the Promoters, Major
Shareholders and others, 75.64% of the paid-up Capital of the Company has been acquired by M/s CreditAccess Grameen
Limited (CAGL), Bangalore, a Non-Banking Financial Company, on 18th March 2020.Consequently, 18th March
2020, your Company has become a Subsidiary of CAGL.As at 31 March 2021, CAGL holds 76.25% of the company.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing loans to the Self-Help Group (SHG) members and other
loans.

The consolidated statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorized for issue on 26th April 2021

The Consolidated statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and

The Consolidated statements comprise the statements of Madura Micro Finance Limited (the holding
company) and its subsidiary Madura Micro Education Private Limited (the holding company and its subsidiary is referred to
as the “Group”)

The consolidated statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended till date)] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

In respect of accounting matters, the Group has analysed the provisions contained in Ind AS and the relevant
guidance as per RBI Guidelines and has adopted appropriate accounting treatment while ensuring compliance with RBI
Guidelines. The Group follows the prudential norms for income recognition, asset and provisioning as
prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for NBFC-MFI’s and follows the provisioning norms as per Reserve Bank of India or
Ind AS whichever is more stringent.

trading and assets and liabilities designated at fair value through or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been
measured at fair value. The Consolidated statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are
rounded to the nearest crores, except when otherwise indicated.

In view of the matters as mentioned in Note 46, the Company has assessed the impact of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-
19) pandemic on its liquidity and ability to repay its obligations as and when they are due. After the lock down was lifted the
business activities in the economy has improved. Borrowers are gradually able to increase repayment of loans. Company
has seen increase in collection month on month. The new loan disbursements have also improved. The area of
operation is rural and semi-urban, where the impact of the second wave has been lower and is likely to remain lower.

Madura Micro Finance Limited

Corporate in ormation.

. Basis o  preparation

Notes
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 Even in case of partial lockdown, the recoveries of loan is not expected to deteriorate. Company has liquidity to
pay off its debts and Company has widened its funding sources while retaining existing lenders.Based on the foregoing and
necessary stress tests considering various scenarios, management believes that the Company will be able to pay its
obligations as and when these become due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the standalone statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The subsidiary company does not have any operations or business activity post March 31, 2021. Pursuant to the meeting
of Board of Directors of the subsidiary company held on January 22, 2021, the subsidiary company is planning to a
strike application before Registrar of Companies under Section 248(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 after complying with
the applicable conditions. Basis the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the subsidiary company in the meeting
dated January 22, 2021, these statements of the subsidiary company are prepared on a "not for going concern"
basis.

Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Substitution of the of term 'Material'
Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - In order to maintain consistency with 
Ind AS 1, the respective changes have been made to Ind AS 8 also.
Ind AS 10 Events after the Reporting Period - on the disclosures requirements to be made in case of a material
non- adjusting event. 
Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - In order to maintain consistency with the amendments made in other Ind AS,
respective changes have been made to Ind AS 34. 
Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - on the accounting treatment for
restructuring plans. 
Ind AS 103 Business Combination - Detailed guidance on term 'Business' and 'Business Combination' along with providing
an Optional test to identify concentration of Fair Value.
Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - on certain disclosures to be made in respect of uncertainty
arising from interest rate benchmark reforms.
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - on temporary exceptions from applying hedge accounting
requirements along with providing guidance on transition for hedge accounting. 
Ind AS 116 Leases - on whether rent concessions as a direct consequence of COVID- 19 pandemic can be

 Business model assessment (Refer Note no.3.13) - Financial Instrument
value measurement

Provisions (Refer Note no. 3.8)
Contingent liabilities and assets (Refer Note no.3.9)
Provision for tax expenses (Refer note no.3.11) - Taxes
Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note no. 3.6.1)

“The preparation of the Group’s Consolidated statements requires Management to make use of estimates and
judgements. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of items, it is possible
that the outcomes in the subsequent years could from those on which the Management’s estimates are
based. Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various 

Leases covered under INDAS 116 (Refer note 34)

New and amended standards and interpretation

New Standards notified but not effective 
None

2.1 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Notes
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Estimates and associated assumptions, especially for determining the impairment allowance for group's assets,
are based on historical experience and other emerging factors on account of the pandemic which may also have an 
on the expected credit loss. The Group believes that the factors considered are reasonable under the current
circumstances. The Group has used indicators of moratorium and delayed repayment metrics observed along with an
estimation of potential stress on probability of default and exposure at default due to COVID-19 situation in developing the
estimates and assumptions to assess the expected credit losses on loans. Given the dynamic nature of the pandemic
situation with surge in Second Wave, these estimates are subject to uncertainty and may be by the severity and
duration of the pandemic.

The Group presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in accodance with Schedule III Division III of Companies Act 2013.
The Group generally reports assets and liabilities on a gross basis in the balance sheet. They are 
and reported net only when INDAS permits the same or it has an unconditional legally enforceable right to

the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similarly the Group incomes and
o do so by INDAS.

This note provides a list of the accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

 Purchased or originated credit-impaired assets, where the company applies the credit adjusted EIR
ition, and

Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit impaired assets but subsequently have
become credit-impaired assets, where the company applies EIR to the amortised cost of the

The Group computes Interest income by applying the interest rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
sset.

When calculating the EIR, the Group includes all fees and charges paid or received to and from the borrowers
that are an integral part of the interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts, but
not future credit losses.

2.2 Presentation of onsoli ate  financial statements

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

3.  Revenue recognition

3. . nterest income

3. .2 Interest income on all assets required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised using the contractual
interest rate.

3. .3 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

3. .4 The Group recognises gains on fair value change of assets measured at FVTPL and realised
et basis.

3. .5 Income from assignment transactions i.e. present value of excess interest spread is recognised when
the related loan assets are de-recognised.

3. .6 Interest income on deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable. 

3. .7 The fees receivable in respect of courses conducted is reckoned on accrual basis on the basis of the
courses conducted during the year. Other income is accounted for on accrual basis.

Notes
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Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Costs comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), any attributable expenditure in making the assets ready for intended
use.

Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic associated

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties and
other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization criteria
are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Following initial
recognition intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

.  Finance cost

.  Cash and cash equivalents

.4 Propert  plant and equipment (‘PPE )

.5 Intangible assets

Transition to IND AS
For transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all assets, recognised as of 1 April
2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the
transition date.

.6 Depreciation and amortization

.6.  Depreciation

.6.  Amortisation

Depreciation on PPE (other than freehold land and properties under construction) is recognised and measured on the
depreciable amount ( being cost less residual value) using the straight-line method as per the useful life estimated by the
management which are as follows:

Assets costing less than Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, and
the of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The management has estimated supported by
independent assessment by professionals, the useful life of motor vehicles as 8 years which is lower than the prescribed
rate under Schedule II to the Act.

Amortisation on intangible assets is recognised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, for the of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on prospective basis. Management has estimated the useful life of Software to be
the license period or 3 years, whichever is lower.

Asset T pe  Use ul Li e 
Computer

Plant and Machinery
Mobile phones
Motor Vehicles
Furnitures & Fixtures
Electrical Fittings
Buildings
Software

3 years
5 years

10 years
5 years
8 years

10 years
10 years
30 years

5 years

Notes
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The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks sp to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account if available. If no such transactions

An item of property, plant and equipment and any part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the
item (calculated as the between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized in

An Intangible-assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible-assets measured as the between the net disposal

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable that an
of resources embodying economic will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the

amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is
material.

.7 Impairment o  non– inancial assets

De- Recognition:

.8 Provisions

.9 Contingent liabilities and assets
Contingent liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligations which will be only by future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or (ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an of

.  Retirement and other emplo ee bene its

. .  De ined contribution plan

Retirement be in the form of provident fund is a contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective fund. The Company recognises contribution
payable to the respective fund as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

Gratuity liability, which is unfunded, is a obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurement of the liabilities are included in other comprehensive income.

. .  De ined bene it plan

Notes
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The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as long-term employee
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the

Current income tax assets and liabilities, including any adjustments of current tax for prior periods, are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961, using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are if a legally enforceable right exists to set the recognized
amounts and the company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary to the extent that it is probable that taxable will

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that taxable will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are if a legally enforceable right exists to set current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax.

. .  Leave salar .

. .  Current income tax

. .  De erred tax

.  Income Taxes

. .4 Short-term employee ,including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave)
where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service, sharing and bonuses payable within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related services and non-monetary for current employees,
are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis.

Notes
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Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. The of instruments at initial
recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention when
acquiring them. All assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through or loss) are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the

Debt instruments at amortised cost
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI.

The ancial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold assets in order

The contractual terms of the asset give rise on dates to cash that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. After initial
measurement such loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Interest
Rate (EIR) method less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the
statement of and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

The l asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on dates to cash that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A asset is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being carried to other
comprehensive income, if both the following conditions are met:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share, the net or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of

A instrument is any contract that gives rise to a asset of one entity and a liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provision of
the instruments.

. .  Financial Assets

. . .  Initial recognition and measurement

. . .  Subsequent measurement

. . .  Financial assets measured at amortized cost

. . .4 Financial assets carried at air value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

.  Earning per share

.  Financial instruments

Notes
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A cial asset other than those stated as amortized cost/FVTOCI is subsequently fair valued through
or loss. A gain or loss on a instrument that is subsequently measured at fair value through
or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in or loss and presented net in

the statement of and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Dividend

The Group derecognises a asset when the contractual rights to the cash from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred asset,
theGroup continues to recognise the asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a asset in its entirety, the between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received or receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in or loss if
such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in or loss on disposal of that 
asset.

Financial liabilities are and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A liability is 
as at FVTPL if it is class as held-for trading or it is designated as on initial recognition. All 
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs. The company’s liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative instruments, which are
measured at amortised cost.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. The EIR amortisation is included as costs in the statement of 
and loss.

A liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. When an existing liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially such an exchange or
is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The Group does not reclassify its assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never

. . .5. Financial assets at air value through pro it or loss (FVTPL)

. . .  Initial recognition and measurement

Derecognition o inancial assets

. .  Financial Liabilities

. .  Reclassi ication o  Financial Assets and Liabilities

. . .  Subsequent measurement

. . .  De-recognition o inancial liabilities

Notes
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The Group recognises Impairment allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on Financial Assets held at
amortized cost. The Group also computes the provision for non-performing assets (NPA) as per IRAC norms
of RBI. The higher of the two is recorded in the books.

The measurement of ECL an unbiased and probability weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes from reasonable and supportable information that is available

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime
expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL). The Group’s policies for

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a asset (or a group of assets) such as
loans and advances and security deposits held at amortised cost are tested for impairment based on
evidence or information that is available without undue cost or Lifetime Expected credit losses are
assessed and loss allowances recognised if the credit quality of the asset has deteriorated

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for Loan
Receivables.

ECL consists of three key components: Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss given
default (LGD). ECL is the product of PD, EAD and LGD.

The Exposure at Default (“EAD”) is an estimate of the exposure (gross carrying amount), at a future default
date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments.

The Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default
may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the loan has not been previously derecognised
and is still in the portfolio.

The Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given
time. It is based on the between the contractual cash due and those that the lender would
expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of
the Exposure at Default.

To calculate the ECL, the Company assesses the possible default events at various stages of the loans. The
Company has broadly followed the following approach to compute ECL.

The Advances exposure is broadly into 2 pools: MFI loans and individual loans. The EAD is
categorised based on respective Past Due status as given below:

All exposures where there has not been a t increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has
low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are under this
stage. The Company has assessed that all standard advances and advances upto 30 days default would fall
under this category.

. .4 Impairment o inancial assets

. .4.  Overview o  the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance principles

. .4.  Measurement o  ECLs

Stage : mECL

Notes
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Financial instruments that have had a increase in credit risk since initial recognition are 
under this stage. 30 Days Past Due upto 90 Days Past Due is considered as increase in credit risk

All exposures greater than 90 Days Past due assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash of that asset have occurred are cla in this
stage. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a LTECL is recognised. Probability of Default is
considered at 100% for credit impaired loans. Interest revenue on these loans is recognized on actual
realization, in line with prudential norms.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of
whether a assets’ credit risk has increased since initial recognition, by considering the

For loans sourced through business correspondants, the Non- performing assets are recovered from them as per
contractual terms and recognised as income in the period in which it becomes a NPA

Loans are written when they are overdue for more than 180 days. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to

The Group measures ancial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation techniques. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

-In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The Group operates in a single business segment i.e. lending to members, having similar risks and returns for the
purpose of Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’. The Group operates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic.

. 4. Recover  o  NPA rom Business Correspondents

. 5. Write-o s

. 6 Fair value measurement

. 7 Segment in ormation

. 8 Foreign currenc

Stage : LTECL — Signi icant increase in credit risk

Stage : LTECL — credit impaired

. 8. All transactions in foreign currency are recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction

. 8. Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the close of the period.

. 8. Exchange di arising on the settlement of monetary items or on the restatement of Groups’s monetary
items at rates from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous

Notes
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A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an ident asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Group assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an 
asset (ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic from use of the asset through the period of
the lease and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,
the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash

that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset  if the Group changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.

. 9 Leases (where the Group is the lessee)

The Group as a lessee

Notes
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4. Particulars

31.03.202031.03.2021

31.03.2021 31.03.2021

31.03.2021
Amortised cost Amortised cost

31.03.2021

5. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

6. Loans (excluding securitised assets)

Particulars

Particulars

Total - Gross

Term Loans - Net

(B) (a) Secured by tangible assets

Total - Grosst

Total - Net

(C 1) Loans in India

Total - Gross

Total - Net

(C 2) Loans outside India

(A 1) Term loans (excluding securitised assets):

Fixed deposit with bank not considered as cash
 and cash equivalents

Self help group loans

Less: Impairment loss allowance

(b) Unsecured

Less: Impairment loss allowance

(a) Public sector

(b) Others

Less: Impairment loss allowance

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total - Net

Joint liability loans
Individual loans

*Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings is Rs.43.47 crores
(Rs.37.07 Crores on 31st Mar'20). (Refer note 12).

Cash in hand
Balances with Banks in current accounts
Bank deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months
Total

Total

 0.02 
 40.17 
 40.05 
 80.24  

 0.29 

 56.94 

 56.94 

 52.91 

 2,089.84 
 1.01 
 2.77 

 2,093.62 

 0.18 

 2,093.44 

 2,093.62 
 (104.08) 

 1,989.54 

 2,093.62 

 2,093.62 
 (104.08) 

 1,989.54 

- 

- 
- 

- 

- 
- 

 1,831.97 

 (43.10) 
 1,875.07 

 1,875.07 

 1,831.97 

 (43.10) 
 1,875.07 

 1,874.81 

 0.26 

 1,875.07 
 5.95 

 1,869.12 

 62.07 
 423.13 
  485.49 

 `in crores 
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(A) Term loans:
 Self help  group loans

Total - Gross
 Less: Impairment loss allowance

Total - Net

Particulars

(B) (a) Secured by tangible assets
(b) Unsecured

Total - Gross
 Less: Impairment loss allowance

Total - Net

(C) (I) Loans in India
(a) Public sector
(b) Others

Total - Gross
 Less: Impairment loss allowance

Total - Net

(C 1) Loans in India
(a) Public sector
(b) Others

 98.14 

 98.14 
 (3.54) 
 94.60  

 98.14 
 98.14 
 (3.54) 

 (3.54) 

 - 

- 
 - 
-

 15.89 

 15.89 
 (2.77) 
 13.12 

 15.89 
 15.89 
 (2.77) 

 (2.77) 

 15.89 
 15.89 

 98.14 
 98.14 

 13.12  94.60  

 13.12  94.60  

 - 

- 
 - 
-

31.03.202031.03.2021

  6(A) Group lending loans - (Self help groups, Joint Liability Group and Securitised assets)

Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st March 2021

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in 
relation to Group lending loans:

Standard
Non Performing assets
Total

TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1
 2,008.37 
 1,664.42  1,664.42 

  98.37 

 108.19 

  108.19 

 1,900.18 

  1,900.18 

  Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st March 2020

Standard
Non Performing assets
Total

TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1
 1,943.59 

 31.64 
  1,975.23  

 31.64 
   31.64 

 37.04 

  37.04 

 1,906.55 

  1,906.55 

TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1
 1,975.23 

 (64.07)

 31.64 

 (5.95) 

 (64.07)

 37.04 

 (10.35) 

-

 1,906.55 

 211.88 

Gross carrying value of assets as at
31st March 2020

New assets originated during the year, 

derecognised portfolio
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 - 

 2,106.74 

 111.64 
 25.11 

 - 
 98.37 

 107.04 
 (25.54)

 - 
  108.19  

 (218.68) 
 0.43 

 - 
 1,900.18 

Movement between stages
Transfer from Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as at 
31st March 2021

Particulars
TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1

 46.55 

 - 
- 

 127.20 

 106.49  

 20.23 

 (3.26) 
 (64.07)  (64.07)   

 1.44 
 5.03 

 - 

 106.80 

 66.17 

 7.36 

 (2.10) 

- 

 1.07 
 (5.11) 

 - 

 19.07 

 20.29  

 18.96 

 2.17 

- 

 (2.51) 
 0.08 

 - 

 1.33 

 20.03 

ECL allowance as at 31st March 2020

New assets originated during the year, 

derecognised portfolio

Movement between stages
Transfer from Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3

Impact on ECL on account of 
movement between stages / updates 
to the ECL model

ECL allowance as at 31st March 2021

TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1

 1,878.59 

 144.69 

 (48.04)

 16.64 

 (4.56)

 (48.04) 

 50.85 

 (25.38)

-

 1,811.09 

 174.63 

-

Gross carrying value of assets as at 
1st April 2019

New assets originated during the year, 

* This includes management overlay of Rs. 8.78 crores.

derecognised portfolio

 - 

 1,975.24 

 44.82 
 22.78 

 - 
 31.64  

 36.37 
 (24.80) 

 - 
 37.04  

 (81.19) 
 2.02 

 - 
 1,906.55 

Movement between stages
Transfer from Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as at 
31st March 2020

Total
 in crores

Stage 3Stage 2Stage 1
 26.86

(6.06) 

 (48.05)

 0.00 
 - 

- 

 10.31 

 (2.82) 

 (48.05) 

 0.21 
 3.63 

 - 

 8.11 

 (4.05)

- 

 0.17 
 (3.96) 

 - 

 8.44 

 0.81 

- 

 (0.38) 
 0.33 

 - 

ECL allowance as at 31st March 2019

New assets originated during the year, 

derecognised portfolio

Movement between stages
Transfer from Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3
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  6(B) Group lending loans - (Self help groups, Joint Liability Group and Securitised assets)

Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st March 2020

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to
 Individual lending loans:

Particulars

Total

 73.80  56.95  7.09  9.76 

 46.55  20.23  7.09  18.96   7.36 

 Impact on ECL on account of movement
 between stages / updates to the ECL model

 the year ended March 31, 2021l

ECL allowance as at 31st March  2020

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

Standard
Substandard assets
Doubtful assets

TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1
 2.07 
 0.71 

  2.78  

 0.71 

  0.71 

 0.39 

  0.39 

 1.68 

  1.68 

Particulars

Total

Standard
Substandard assets
Doubtful assets

TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1
 6.03 
 0.04 

  6.07  

 0.04 

  0.04  

 6.03 

 6.03 

TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1
 6.07 

 (3.12) 

 (0.17)

 - 

 2.78 

 0.04 

 (0.04) 

 (0.17)

 0.83 
 0.05 

 - 
 0.71 

 0.05 

-

 0.40 
 (0.06) 

 - 
 0.39  

 6.03 

 (3.13)

 (1.23) 
 0.01 

 - 
 1.68 

Gross carrying value of assets as at
31st March 2020

New assets originated during the year, 

derecognised portfolio

Movement between stages
Transfer from Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as at 
31st March 2020

Total
 in crores

Stage 3Stage 2Stage 1
 0.08 

 (0.03) 

 (0.17) 

 0.00 
 - 
- 

 0.49 

 0.02 

 (0.02) 

 (0.17) 

 0.49 
 0.04 

 - 

 (0.00) 

 (0.00) 

- 

 (0.04) 
 - 

 0.04 

 0.06 

 (0.01) 

- 

 (0.49) 
 0.00 

 - 

 0.45 

ECL allowance as at 31st March 2020

New assets originated during the year, 

derecognised portfolio

Movement between stages
Transfer from Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3

Impact on ECL on account of 
movement between stages / updates 
to the ECL model
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TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1
 10.20

 (3.51) 

 (0.62)

 - 

 6.07  

 0.47 

 (0.43) 

 (0.62)

 0.62 

 - 
 0.04  

-

- 

 9.73 

 (3.08)

 (0.62)

 - 
 6.03  

 0.06   0.02   0.08  

Gross carrying value of assets as at
31st March 2020

New assets originated during the year, 

derecognised portfolio

Movement between stages
Transfer from Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as at 
31st March 2020

 in crores

 in crores

TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1Particulars
 0.25 

 (0.90) 

 (0.62) 

 - 
- 

 1.35 

 0.23 

 (0.21)

 (0.62)

 0.14 

 0.48 

 - 

- 

 - 

 0.02 

 (0.69) 

- 

 (0.14)

 - 

 0.87 

ECL allowance as at 31st March 2019

ECL allowance as at 31st March 2019

New assets originated during the year, 

derecognised portfolio

Movement between stages
Transfer from Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3

Impact on ECL on account of 
movement between stages / updates 
to the ECL model

 0.49  0.04  0.45 

 0.37  0.00  0.36  0.01 

Impact on ECL on account of 
movement between stages / updates 
to the ECL model

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

ECL allowance as at 31st March  2021 

Particulars

7. Investments

31.03.202031.03.2021

Investments
A) In India

-in mutual funds
-in equity instruments
Investment in Alpha

B) Outside India
Total

 45.02 

 0.34 
 -

  45.36  

 0.34 
 -

 0.34 

 in crores
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TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1
 10.20 

 (3.51) 

 (0.62)

 - 

 6.07  

 0.47 

 (0.43) 

 (0.62)

 0.62 

 - 
 0.04  

-

- 

 9.73 

 (3.08)

 (0.62)

 - 
 6.03  

 0.06   0.02   0.08  

Gross carrying value of assets as at
31st March 2020

New assets originated during the year, 

derecognised portfolio

Movement between stages
Transfer from Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as at 
31st March 2020

 in crores

 in crores

TotalStage 3Stage 2Stage 1Particulars
 0.25 

 (0.90) 

 (0.62) 

 - 
- 

 1.35 

 0.23 

 (0.21)

 (0.62)

 0.14 

 0.48 

 - 

- 

 - 

 0.02 

 (0.69) 

- 

 (0.14)

 - 

 0.87 

ECL allowance as at 31st March 2019

ECL allowance as at 31st March 2019

New assets originated during the year, 

derecognised portfolio

Movement between stages
Transfer from Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3

Impact on ECL on account of 
movement between stages / updates 
to the ECL model

 0.49  0.04  0.45 

 0.37  0.00  0.36  0.01 

Impact on ECL on account of 
movement between stages / updates 
to the ECL model

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

ECL allowance as at 31st March  2021 

Particulars

7. Investments

31.03.202031.03.2021

Investments
A) In India

-in mutual funds
-in equity instruments
Investment in Alpha

B) Outside India
Total

 45.02 

 0.34 
 -

  45.36  

 0.34 
 -

 0.34 

 in crores
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31.03.202031.03.2021

31.03.202031.03.2021

Particulars

Particulars

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

 Retained interest on assets assigned
 Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)
 Loans and advances to employees (unsecured,
 considered good)
 Others

8

 8.46 
 2.12 
 0.71 

 1.31 
 12.60 

 14.73 
 2.05 
 0.49 

 4.78 
 22.05 

 Other advances
Unsecured, considered good

   Total
 0.76 
 0.76 

 0.37 
 0.37  
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Notes

31.03.202031.03.2021

Debentures (secured)
Debentures (unsecured)
Total

11. Debt securities (at amortised cost)
Particulars

Debt securities in India
Debt securities outside India
Total

 137.30  153.84 
 15.01 

 168.85 

 168.85 

 168.85 

 137.30 

 137.30 

 137.30 

- 

 of the Company.

Face value
(in Rs)

Number of debentures

-

31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Terms of debentures

11.50% Non-Convertible 
Debentures - Privately 
placed, Listed Secured by 
exclusive charge on the 
loans created out of the 
proceeds of the debentures. 
The NCD was redeemed in 
one bullet payment on 
31-July-2020

 0.00  1,000,000

400

 366 

 330 

 250 

 1,000,000  40.76 

14.15% Non-Convertible 
Debentures - Privately 
placed, Listed Secured by 
exclusive charge on loans 
created out of the 
proceeds of the 
debentures and 
immovable properties. 
The NCD is redeemable in 
one bullet payment on 
31-July-2020.
11.40% Non-Convertible 
Debentures - Privately 
placed, Listed Secured by 
exclusive charge on loans 
created out of the 
proceeds of the 
debentures and 
immovable properties. 
The NCD is redeemable in 
one bullet payment on 
05-Dec-2020.

11.40% Non-Convertible 
Debentures - Privately 
placed, Listed Secured by 
exclusive charge on loans 
created out of the 
proceeds of the 
debentures and 
immovable properties. 
The NCD is redeemable in 
one bullet payment on 
05-Dec-2020.

 34.34  1,000,000

 24.96  1,000,000

 in crores

Amount `in Crores
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Total

Debentures (unsecured) at amortised cost

Terms of debentures

 4,860  1,706  153.85  137.30 

Face value
(in Rs)

Number of debentures
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

 250.00 

 500.00 

 360.00 

 3,750.00 

 150.00 

 360.00 

10.11% Non-convertible
 Debentures - Privately
 placed, Listed. Secured by
 hypothecation of loans
 granted to Self Help Groups. 
The maturity date of 
the Debentures is 30-Jun-2022,
 with redeemed in 
four equal installment on
04-Oct-2021, 31-Dec-2021
, 31-Mar-2022 and balance
redeemed on 30-Jun-2022

10.50% Non-convertible 
Debentures - Privately placed
, Listed  Secured by exclusive
 charge on loans created out of
 the proceeds of the debentures.
 The NCD is redeemable in one 
bullet payment on 17-Feb-2022 

11.00% Non-Convertible
 Debentures - Privately placed,
 unlisted Secured by exclusive
 charge on the loans created out
 of the proceeds of the debentures
 and immovable properties. 99.99% 
of the principal amount of the NCD
 is redeemable on 13-May-2021 and 
balance on 13-May-2023

 9.80% Non-convertible 
Debentures - Privately
 placed, Listed. Secured by
 hypothecation of loans granted
 to Self Help Groups. The maturity 
date of the Debentures is 23-Apr-2024, 
with 99.99% redeemed on 22-Apr-2022
 and balance redeemed on 23-Apr-2024

13.00% Non-Convertible 
Debentures - Privately placed, 
listed, unSecured .The NCD
is redeemable on 16-Aug-2021

 1,000,000

 1,000,000

 1,000,000

 1,000,000

 1,000,000  15.01 

 25.01 

 53.26 

 37.46 

 38.12 

 37.24 

- 

- 

- 

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

 -

-

Amount `in Crores
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 the year ended March 31, 2021

13  Subordinated liabilities (at amortised cost)

Debentures (subordinated liabilities, at amortised cost)

Terms of debentures Number of debentures Face value
 (in Rs)

"Amount 
(  in crores)"

Borrowings other than debt securities (at amortised cost)
Particulars

Particulars

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Grand Total

Terms of repayment of subordinate terms loan as march 31,2021

Original maturity of loan
.

Interest rate

.

 Due between 4 to 5 Years 

.

 Due more than 5 years 

.

 Total

.

 No. of 
installments 

.

Amount 

.

 No. of 
installments 

.

Amount 

.

 50.02  50.02 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Term loans (secured)

Debentures

Term loans

Subordinated liabilities in India

14.25% Subordinated, Unsecured,
 Non-Convertible Debentures - 
Privately placed, Listed.  The NCDs
 are redeemable on 29-Mar-2024.

Bullet - Above 3 years. 13.5%-14%  1  12.50  1  12.50  25.00 

 1  12.50   1  12.50  25.00 

Subordinated liabilities outside India

 1,141.07 

 50.02  50.02 

 24.91 

 74.93 

500  1,000,000  50.02  50.02 500 

 74.90 

 24.88 

 950.97 
 315.41 
 151.25 

 0.01 

 344.28 
 271.07 

 146.44 

 1,902.86  1,417.64 

 1,417.64 

 1,417.64 

 1,902.86 

 1,902.86 

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2021

 74.93 

 74.93 

 74.90 

 74.90 

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Term loans (unsecured)

Cash credit (secured)

Borrowings in India
Borrowings outside India

Refer Note 12.1 for tenure, interest rates and repayment schedule All the above secured loans 
 are secured by a charge on the advances granted to Self Help Groups from the proceeds of the 

 terms require it.

Banks
Financials institutions

Banks

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

-

 ̀  in crores
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Total

Total

Total

Total

 5.85 

 1.74  2.18 

 0.98  1.79 

9.15  80.79 

March 31, 2020

Grand Total

14. Financial liability towards securitisation March 31, 2021
Particulars

March 31, 2020March 31, 2021

March 31, 202016.Provisions March 31, 2021

Particulars

Particulars

March 31, 2020March 31, 2021
Particulars

Terms of repayment of subordinate terms loan as march 31,2020

Original maturity of loan
.

Interest rate  Due between 4 to 5 Years 

.

 Due more than 5 years 

.

 Total
 No. of 

installments Amount 
 No. of 

installments Amount 
Bullet - Above 3 years.

Borrowings under securitisation arrangement

Lease liability

Statutory dues payable
Others

Gratuity
Leave encashment and availment

14%-14.5%

 9.15 

 0.98 

 3.36 

 1.68  2.12 
 0.06  0.06 

 2.58 
 1.71  3.36 

 1.79 

 80.79 

 2 25.00  25.00 

 1  13  3  37.50  50.00 

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

` in Crores

` in Crores

 ̀in Crores

 ̀in Crores
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31.03.202031.03.2021

31.03.202031.03.2021

31.03.2021
No. of Shares "Amount 

31.03.2020
No. of Shares "Amount 

Authorised.  10.00 

 7.19 

 10.00 

 10.00 

 10.00 

1 crore equity shares (March 2020: 1 
crore equity shares) of INR 10 each

71,94,761 (March 31, 2020: 71,94,761)
 equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

At the beginning of the year

"The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of  10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. Any dividends proposed
 by the Board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Equity shares of INR 10 each
CreditAccess Grameen Limited (Holding Company)

CreditAccess Grameen Limited (Holding Company)
Ms. Tara Thiagarajan
Mr. M Narayanan

In the event of liquidation of Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
 of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number 
of equity shares held by the shareholders."

 7.19 

 5,486,216

 7.19 
Add: Issued during the year

18 . Issued capital

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

serahs ytiuqe ot dehcatta sthgiR/smreT)b(

(c) Details of shares held by holding company

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Total

Equity shares

31.03.2021
No. of Shares "Amount 

31.03.2020Particulars

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
 5,486,216 

 899,345 
 397,683 

31.03.2021
No. of Shares 

Particulars

Outstanding at the end of the year  7,194,761  7.19  7,194,761  7.19 

Total  7.19 

 7.19 

 7.19 

Particulars

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

( in crores)" (  in crores)"

No. of Shares "Amount 
 ̀in crores)" `( in crores)"

 5.49  5,473,975  5.47 

31.03.2020
% %

Holding No. of Share s Holding

76.25%  5,473,975 76.25% 
12.50%  899,345 12.50%
5.53%  397,683 5.53% 
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31.03.202031.03.2021
19. Other equity*

Particulars

Statutory reserve (As required by Sec 45-IC 
of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)

Securities premium

For detailed movement of reserves refer statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31,2021

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only
 for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

any dividend is declared. 
(2) No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the NBFC except for the purpose as

 twenty-one days from the date of such withdrawal: Provided that the RBI may, in any particular case and for 

condone any delay in making such report.
(3) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), the Central Government may, on the recommendation
of the RBI and having regard to the adequacy of the paid-up capital and reserves of a NBFC in relation to its deposit
liabilities, declare by order in writing that the provisions of sub-section (1) shall not be applicable to the NBFC for

Provided that no such order shall be made unless the amount in the reserve fund under sub-section (1) together 
with the amount in the share premium account is not less than the paid-up capital of the NBFC.

Retained earnings

Total

Nature and purpose of reserve

19.1 Securities premium reserve

19.2  Statutory reserve (As required by Sec 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)

 :4391 ,tcA aidnI fo knaB evreseR ehT ni )1(CI-54 noitceS 

 394.

 62.19 

 83.65 
248.33 

 62.19 

 83.65 
248.

 394.17 
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For the year ended
 31.03.2021 

For the year ended
   31.03.2021  31.03.2020

   measured at
 amortised cost 

For the year ended
 31.03.2020 

   measured at
 amortised cost 

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

20. Interest income

Particulars

Particulars

For the year ended
   31.03.2021

  
 31.03.2020

For the year ended
   31.03.2021  31.03.2020

Particulars

Particulars

Interest on loans

(A) Net gain / (loss) on fair value instruments at fair value

(i) On trading portfolio
- Investments

(B) Others
(i) Gain on derecognition of loans designated at FVTPL

Fair Value changes:
- Realised
- Unrealised:

Gain on de-recognition of loans under
 assignment (Refer note 3.1.5)
Pass-through of bad debts and NPAs to
 Business Correspondents partners

 392.25 
 12.96 
 0.75 
 6.66 

 414.98 
 27.59 
 7.36 
 5.01 

Income from securitisation
Income from portfolio purchased through assignment

Loan portfolio servicing fees  0.01 

 2.26 

 2.26 

 2.26 

 9.68  10.36 

 3.91 

 2.49 
 0.02 

 2.51 

 2.51 

 2.26  2.51 

 0.26 

 0.26 

Total

Total  0.01

 10.36 Total  13.59 

 412.62  454.94 

21. Fees and commission

22. Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes

23. Others

Total Net gain / (loss) on fairvalue changes (C) 

Total Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes (D) 
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Net gain / (loss) on derecognition of property, plant 
and equipment
Net gain / (loss) on foreign currency transaction and 

Advertisement display income
Others

(A) On borrowings
Interest on debt securities
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities
Interest on subordinated liabilities

(A) On borrowings

Group loans
a) Impairment allowance
b) Bad debts
Individual loanss

 60.09 
 64.23 
 0.14 

 8.64 
 48.67 
 (0.17) 

 17.27 
 156.05 
 11.11 
 1.32 

 185.76 

 4.39 

 0.17 

 185.33 

 9.96 

 0.20 

 17.41 
 158.07 
 8.49 
 1.36 

For the year ended
   31.03.2021  31.03.2020

Particulars

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity
Leave encashment and availment

 70.52 
 6.96 
 1.05 
 1.03 
 0.83 

 58.69 
 5.79 
 0.77 
 0.57 
 1.59 

Total  80.39  67.41 

For the year ended
 31.03.2021 

   measured at
 amortised cost 

For the year ended
 31.03.2020 

   measured at
 amortised cost 

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

24. Other Income

25. Finance costs

Total  124.46  57.14 

Particulars

For the year ended
        31.03.2021  

For the year ended
        31.03.2020  

Particulars

For the year ended
        31.03.2021  

        measured 
 at amortised cost 

        measured 
 at amortised cost 

For the year ended
        31.03.2020  

Particulars

 0.01 

 2.24 
 0.11 

 0.07 

 4.31 
 0.01 
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Rental charges payable under operating leases
Rates and taxes 
Insurance 
Repairs and maintenance
Electricity
Travelling and conveyance
Postage and telecommunication
Printing and stationery
Professional and consultancy charges
Remuneration to Non-executive directors
Auditors remuneration (refer Note below)
Training expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses (refer note below)
Miscellaneous expenses

As auditor
Audit fee
Limited review
Others
In other capacity

Taxation matter
Reimbursement of expenses

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the
 Company during the year

b) Amount spent during the year (in cash)
i) Construction / acquisition of any asset
ii) On purposes other than (i) above

c) Provision for the amount not spent during the year

Current tax
Current year
Earlier years
Deferred tax 

 13.00 
 - 
 (12.27) 

 0.73 Total tax charge  26.74  

 30.01 
 (1.74)
 (1.53) 

 2.12 

 - 
 0.97 

 1.15 

 1.72 

 - 
 1.32 

 - 

 0.43 
 0.13 
 0.10 

 0.09 
 - 
- 

 0.30 
 0.04 
 0.13 
 - 
 0.01 
 - 
 0.01 

 4.29 
 0.17 
 0.12 
 4.17 
 0.48 
 8.49 
 2.90 
 1.42 
 7.37 
 0.36 
 0.75 
 0.03 
 2.12 
 2.65 

 3.63 
 0.27 
 0.14 
 3.69 
 0.49 
 8.84 
 2.52 
 1.95 
 16.07 
 0.49 
 0.49 
 0.18 
 1.32 
 4.26 

Total  35.32  44.34  

Total  35.32  44.34 

For the year ended
   31.03.2021  31.03.2020

Particulars

For the year ended
   31.03.2021  31.03.2020

Particulars

For the year ended
   31.03.2021  31.03.2020

Particulars

For the year ended
   31.03.2021  31.03.2020

A. Particulars

Auditors remuneration

Details of CSR expenditure

28. Other expenses

29. Income tax

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes
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Net Deferred tax assets 
/ (liabilities)

 12.24  12.27  0.01   24.53  32.06  (7.53) 

 Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2020
Deferred

tax
liability

Deferred
tax

asset

Net balance
31.03.2021

Recognised
in OCI

Net balance
01.04.2020

(Charge) /

and loss
Deferred tax assets/ 

 0.56 

 1.07 

11.07 

11.07 
 (2.28) 

 2.94 

 0.09 

 0.39  0.01 

 16.11 

 0.31 
 (4.44)

 (0.19) 

 0.65  0.65 

 1.47  1.47 

 27.18  27.18 

 (0.81)
 (6.72)

 (0.81)
 (6.72)

 2.76  2.76 

between tax depreciation / 
amortisation
Remeasurement gain / (loss) 

Impairment allowance for 

Interest on securitisation loans 
Retained interest on assets 
assigned 
Other items 

loans

(B)

 in crores

Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Pro t before tax 0.53 106.41

At India’s statutory income tax rate of
25.17% (FY 2019-20: 25.17%) * 0.13 26.78

(a) Non deductible expenses
CSR Expenses 0.53 0.34
Interest on delayed payment of tax 0.15 0.00

(b) Change in tax rate - 1.44

(c) Additional allowance of certain expenditure (0.08) (0.13)

(d) Income not subject to tax 0.00 0.04

(e) Tax pertaining to earlier years - (1.74)

0.73 26.74
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 31.03.2021  31.03.2020

Net Deferred tax assets 
/ (liabilities)

Current tax assets (net) 

Particulars

 31.03.2021  31.03.2020Particulars

Securitisations

Net position at amortised cost  3.97  13.81 

 1.37  4.52 Total

 10.64  1.53  0.07   12.24  15.64  (3.40) 

 Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2020
Deferred

tax
liability

Deferred
tax

asset

Net balance
31.03.2021

Recognised
in OCI

Net balance
01.04.2020

(Charge) /

and loss
Deferred tax assets/ 

 0.39 

 0.88 

 10.39 

 (1.04) 
 (1.66) 

 1.68 

 0.17 

 0.12  0.07 

 0.68 

 (0.08) 
 (0.62) 

 1.26 

 0.56 

 1.07  1.07 

 11.07  11.07 

 (1.12) 
 (2.28)

 (1.12) 
 (2.28)

 2.94  2.94 

 0.56 
between tax depreciation / 
amortisation
Remeasurement gain / (loss) 

Impairment allowance for 

Interest on securitisation loans 
Retained interest on assets 
assigned 

(D). The following tables provides the details of income tax assets as at: 

 with the associated liabilities: 

Carrying amount of transferred assets 
measured at amortised cost
Less: Impairment loss allowance

Carrying amount of associated liabilities
 (debt securities - measured at amortised cost)

Income tax assets
Income tax liabilities 

2.36
0.99

 15.89  98.14 

 (3.54) 
 94.60 

 80.79 

 (2.77) 
 13.12 

 9.15 

4.69
0.17

Other items 

loans

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements
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 IN CRORES 31(A)

31(A)(1)

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances 
for the net de ned bene t liability/assets and its components:

Particulars
Reconciliation of present v
Obligation at the beginning of the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Past service cost
Bene ts settled
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income

 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

2.58 1.74
0.92 0.65
0.13 0.12

- -
-0.32 -0.22

-
0.04

 -
0.12
0.00
0.16
2.58

-
0.01
3.36

Reconciliation of present value of plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value
Interest income on plan assets
Re-measurement- actuarial gain
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income
Contributions
Bene ts settled
Plan assets at the end of the ear, at fair value

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

3.36 2.58

- Changes in experience adjustments
- Changes in demographic assumptions
- Changes in nancial assumptions

ear

31(A)(2)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current service cost 0.92 0.65
Interest cost 0.13 0.12
Past service cost  - -
Interest income  - - 

1.05 0.77

31(A)(3)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 202

- Changes in experience adjustments 0.04 0.12
- Changes in demographic assumptions - 0.00

0.01 0.16

Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate
0.05 0.29

31(A)(4)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 202

Funds managed by insurer  - -
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 IN LAKHS 

31(A)5 De ned bene t obligation - Actuarial assumptions

Particulars  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
Discount rate 4.85% 4.90%
Future salary growth 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition rate 30.00% 30.00%
Normal retirement age 60 years 60 years

31(A)6 Sensitivity analysis  in crores

Particulars
Present Value of Obligation (Base) 3.36 55.2     

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 3.23          3.50          2.48 2.69          
Future salary growth (1% movement) 3.49              3.23          2.68 2.49          
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates) 2.72              4.75          2.12 3.60          
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 3.36                 3.36          2.58 2.58          

31(B)Compensated leave absence

31(B)(1) Reconciliation of net de ned bene t liability

0202 ,13 hcraM 1202 ,13 hcraM sralucitraP
Reconciliation of present value of de ned bene t obligation

17.1raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta noitagilbO 1.33  
80.1tsoc ecivres tnerruC 0.69  
80.0tsoc tseretnI 0.09  

-tsoc ecivres tsaP -  
52.0-delttes stifeneB -0.19 

-emocni evisneherpmoc rehto ni desingocer sessol /)sniag( lairautcA             -  
31.0-stnemtsujda ecneirepxe ni segnahC- -0.30 

-snoitpmussa cihpargomed ni segnahC- 0.00 
00.0snoitpmussa laicnanif ni segnahC- 0.09 
94.2raey eht fo dne eht ta noitagilbO 1.71

94.2 1.71

Reconciliation of present value of plan assets
-eulav riaf ta ,raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta stessa nalP -  
-stessa nalp no emocni tseretnI -  
-niag lairautca -tnemerusaem-eR -  
-emocni evisneherpmoc rehto ni desingocer stessa nalp no nruteR          -  
-snoitubirtnoC -  
-delttes stifeneB -  

Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value - -  
ytilibail tifeneb denifed teN    

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have a ected the de ned bene t obligation by the amounts shown
below: 

 March 31, 202 March 31, 2020

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the
net de d bene t liability/assets and its components:
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31(B)(2) Expense recognised in pro t or loss

0202 ,13 hcraM 1202 ,13 hcraM sralucitraP
80.1tsoc ecivres tnerruC 0.69  
80.0tsoc tseretnI 0.09  

-tsoc ecivres tsaP  -  
-emocni tseretnI  -  

Re-measurement of the net de ed bene t liability - -  
31.0-stnemtsujda ecneirepxe ni segnahC- -0.30 

-snoitpmussa cihpargomed ni segnahC- 0.00 
00.0snoitpmussa laicnanif ni segnahC- 0.09 

Re-measurement of the net de ed bene t asset - -  
-etar tnuocsid naht ssel /)retaerg( stessa nalp no nruteR  -  

Expense recognised in pro t or loss 1.03 0.57  

31(B)(3) Plan assets

0202 ,13 hcraM 1202 ,13 hcraM sralucitraP
Funds managed by insurer - -  

31(B)(4) De ned bene t obligation - Actuarial assumptions

0202 ,13 hcraM 1202 ,13 hcraM sralucitraP
%09.4%58.4etar tnuocsiD
%00.01%00.01htworg yralas erutuF
%00.03%00.03etar noitirttA

sraey 06 sraey 06 ega tnemeriter lamroN

31(B)(5) Sensitivity analysis

Pariculars
Present Value of Obligation (Base) 2.49 17.1

Discount Rate (- / + 1%)
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates)
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial 

2.41 2.57          1.65          1.76          
2.57      2.41          1.76           1.65          
2.28                    3.10             1.56           2.12          
2.49                    2.49             1.71           1.71          

 IN LAKHS 
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32(A)Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021

 21 nihtiW
sralucitraP.oN .lS months

After 12 
months Total

ASSETS
(1) Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 485.49 - 485.49 
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 35.15 - 
(c) Other receivables - - 
(d) Loans

- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets) 1,331.90  657.64 1,989.54   
- Securitised assets 12.29 0.83 13.12   

(e) Investments - 0.34 0.34 
(f) Other cial assets 21.15 0.90 22.05  

- 
(2) Non- ancial assets - 
(a) Current tax assets (net) - 1.37 1.37 
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) - 24.52 24.52  
(c) Property, plant and equipment - 5.78 5.78 
(d) Right to use assets - 0.84 0.84 
(e) Intangible assets - 1.94 1.94 
(f) Other non- nancial assets 0.37 - 0.37 

Total assets 1,886.36

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(1) Financial liabilities
(a) Payables

(I) Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises-                   
(ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 24.83 -         24.83 

(II) Other payables - 
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises-                   -                   - 
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 7.73         7.73 

(b) Borrowings
- Debt securities 125.12 43.73      168.85   
- Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,365.40  537.46      1,902.86   
- Subordinated liabilities 0.02 74.91      74.93   
- Financial liability towards securitisation 9.15 -      9.15 

(c) Other cial liabilities 0.84 0.14      0.98  

(2) Non- ancial liabilities
(a) Provisions 1.52 4.33      5.85  
(b) Other non- nancial liabilities 1.68 0.06      1.74  

(3) Equity
(a) Equity share capital - 7.19 7.19 
(b) Other equity - 394.17 394.17  

Total liabilities and equity 1,536.29  1,061.99       2,598.28   
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32(B)Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020

 21 nihtiWsralucitraP.oN .lS
months

After 12 
months

Total

ASSETS
(1) Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 80.24 - 80.24 
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 28.32 28.62     56.94  
(c) Other receivables - - - 
(d) Loans

- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets) 1,129.15  702.82       1,831.97  
- Securitised assets 84.67 9.93     94.60  

(e) Investments 45.02 0.34     45.36  
(f) Other cial assets 11.86 0.74     12.60  

(2) Non- ancial assets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 4.52 4.52 
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 12.24 12.24  
(c) Property, plant and equipment  7.5
(d) Right to use assets 0.04 1.62     1.66 
(e) Intangible assets 0.89 0.89 
(f) Other non- nancial assets 0.76 -     0.76 

Total assets 1,380.06  769.24       2,149.30  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(1) Financial liabilities
(a) Payables

(I) Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises

- 

(ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 22.32 22.32

(II) Other payables - - 
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 6.48      -

--

6.48

(b) Borrowings
- Debt securities 101.59 35.71     137.30  
- Borrowings (other than debt securities) 907.90 509.74     1,417.64  
- Subordinated liabilities 0.01 74.89     74.90  
- Financial liability towards securitisation 75.48 5.31     80.79  

(c) Other cial liabilities 0.86 0.93     1.79 
(2) Non- ancial liabilities
(a) Provisions 1.21 3.08     4.29 
(b) Other non- nancial liabilities 1.49 0.69     2.18 
(3) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 7.19 7.19 
(b) Other equity 394.41 394.41  

Total liabilities and equity 1,117.34 1,031.95      2,149.29  

All advances that have become NPA as at 31st March 2021 are classi ed as non-current in 
accordance with Reserve Bank of India Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 
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 - 
 0.98 

   -   

  -   

 - 

    -   

33Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of the below:

33(a) serorc nitbed sa degdelwonkca ton ynapmoc eht tsniaga smialC
0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

Demand under Employee Provident Fund Act, 1952 0.25 0.25

33(b) serorc niseetnaraug laicnanif gnidulcxe seetnarauG
0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

Indemnity undertaking given to Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance 
 Company Limited for insurance claims - 02.0

34Leases
34.1

34.2 Total lease liabilities are analysed as at  in crores
a Denominated in the following currencies March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Rupees 0.98 1.79 
Foreign currency  - 

Total  1.79 

 in crores
b Maturity of Lease liability March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current 0.84 0.79 
Non-current 0.14  1.00 

Total 0.98 1.79 

34.3 The following amounts were recognised as expense in the year:  in crores

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 0.79 0.80 
Expense relating to variable lease payments - - 
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets 4.29              3.63 
Interest on lease liabilities 0.17 0.21 
Total recognised in the income statement  5.25  4.64 

34.4

 in crores
Maturity analysis: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Less than 1 year 0.86 4.66 
Between 1 and 2 years 0.19 1.07 
Between 2 and  5 years - 
More than 5 years - 

Total 1.05 5.73 

34.5 The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021.
 in crores

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance as at April 1, 2020 1.79 1.20 
Additions during the period - 1.30 
Finance cost incurred during the period 0.17 0.20 
Terminatiion of lease during the period (0.05) - 
Payment of lease liabilities (0.93) (0.91) 
Balance as of March 31, 2021 0.98 1.79 

The company's leased assets mainly comprise o  building. Leases contain a wide range of di nt 
terms and conditions. The term of property leases ranges from 1-10 years. The company has used an 
incremental borrowing rate of 11.84%  to determine the lease liability and right to use of asset for 
leases in 2019-20. There are no lease arrangements entered during the year.

The following are the undiscounted contractual cash s of lease liabilities. The payment pr le has 
been based on management’s forecasts and could in reality be di nt from expectations:
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35 Related party transactions
Names of the related parties (as per IndAS – 24)

Ultimate controlling party CreditAccess India NV
Holding Company Credit Access Grameen Limited
Company under common control Scisphere Analytics India Private Limited
Company under common control Scimergent Analytics and Education Private Ltd
Whole time Director (Till Mar 31, 2021)
Non-Executive Director (From Apr 1, 2021) Mr. F. S. Mohan Eddy

Independent Director Mr. N. C. Sarabeswaran

Independent Director & Chairman Mr. George Joseph

Non-Executive Director Mr. Paolo Brichetti

Non-Executive Director Mr. Ram Diwakar Boddupalli
Independent Director Mr. Manoj Kumar
Non-Executive Director Mr. Udaya Kumar Hebbar
Non-Executive Director (Till Mar 18, 2020) Mr. Ashok Mirza
Non-Executive Director (Till Mar 18, 2020) Mr. R Ramaraj
Independent Director (Till Mar 18, 2020) Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa
Independent Director (Till Mar 18, 2020) Mrs. Kavitha Vijay

Company secretary- Key Management Personnel
(Till May 30 , 2020) Mr. Sanin Panicker
Company secretary- Key Management Personnel
(From Feb 22, 2021) Mr. Ganesh Hegde

CFO-Key Management Personnel  (Till Jan 30, 2021) Mr. V. Balakrishnan
Managing Director-Key Management
Personnel (till Feb 21,2021)
Non-Executive Director (From Feb 22,2021)

Ms. Tara Thiagarajan

CEO- Key Management Personnel (Till Feb 20, 2021) 
CEO & CFO-Key Management Personnel (From Feb 21,2021)

Mr. M. Narayanan

Relative of Key Management Personnel Mrs. Pamela Mohan 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Transactions during the year
Salary and perquisites -
Ms Tara Thiagarajan 0.66 1.05
Mr F S Mohan Eddy 0.79 1.25
Mr M Narayanan 0.86 1.00
Mr. V. Balakrishnan 0.63 0.57
Mr. Sanin Panicker 0.01 0.08
Mr. Ganesh Hegde 0.01 -
Balances at the end of the year
Gratuity & earned leave payable - Mr M Narayanan * 0.24
Incentives payable -

 
1.33

Key Management PersonnelParticulars

* Provisions for gratuity and leave bene ts are made for the Company as a whole and the amounts 
pertaining to the key management personnel are not speci cally identi ed for March 31, 2020 and hence 
are not included for the said year. 
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March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Sitting fees
Mr. Ashok Mirza 0.05 

Mr. George Joseph 0.08
 Mr. Manoj Kumar 0.06
 

-
-
 

Mrs. Kavitha Vijay 0.10
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran 0.06 0.11

 

Mr. R Ramaraj

-

0.10
 

Mrs. Siva Kameswari Vissa

-

-

-
- 0.10

 

Rent Paid -
 

Mrs. Pamela Mohan 0.18 0.18

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Professional charges
Scisphere Analytics India Private Limited 2.98 2.01

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Transactions during the year
Purchase of intangibles 0.41 
Siiting fees paid for nominee directors 0.13 
Provision for expenses (Provided based on estimate awaiting invoice for 
cost sharing of manpower, IT infrastructure and IT maintenance) 0.64
Balance at the end of year
Amount due to holding company 0.48

Transactions during the year
Other related parties

Transactions during the year Company under common control

Particulars Holding company

0.03 
0.04 
0.06 
0.05 
0.05 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
 Other related parties 

Sitting fees payable
Mr. Ashok Mirza
Mrs. Kavitha Vijay
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran
Mr. R Ramaraj
Mrs. Siva Kameswari Vissa

Balances at the end of the year

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

 
 

For the year endedParticulars

(A) Type of services
Service fees for management of assigned
portfolio of loans Advertisement display income

Total

0.01 0.26 
2.24 4.31
2.25 4.56

36 Revenue from contracts with customers
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March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
For the year endedParticulars

(B)

India 
Outside India

Total

 2.25 4.56 

 - - 
2.25 4.56

Geographical markets

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
For the year endedParticulars

(B)

Services transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time 

Total

 2.25 4.56 

2.25 4.56

Timing of revenue recognition

37

a. Capital to risk assets ratio ('CRAR'): in crores

in crores

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

CRAR (%) 20.89% 23.01%
CRAR-Tier I Capital (%) 17.74% 19.53%
CRAR-Tier II Capital (%) 3.15% 3.48%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier II capital 5.0
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments  Nil  Nil 

b. Investments

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

1. Value of Investments
(i) Gross value of investments

(a) in India  0.34  45.36 
(b) outside India  - - 

(ii) Provisions for depreciation
(a) in India  - - 
(b) outside India  - - 

(iii) Net value of investments
(a) in India  0.34  45.36 
(b) outside India  - - 

2. Movement of provision held towards depreciation
(i) Opening balance  - - 
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year  - - 
(iii) Less: Write-o / write-back of excess provision           - - 
(iv) Closing balance  - - 

Disclosures pursuant to the Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Company-Systematically 
Important Non- Deposit taking Company  and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016 as amended from time to time ('the  Master Directions') issued by the RBI

Note:
Impairment allowance on Stage 1 loans has been considered as ‘contingent provision for standard 
asset’ for the purpose of determining Tier II capital;

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes
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c. Derivatives
The Company has no transactions / exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year. 
The Company has no unhedged foreign currency exposure as on March 31, 2021 (March 31, 
2020: Nil). 

d. Disclosure related to securitization
During the year the Company has transferred loans through securitization. 

uction company for asset 
reconstruction: 
The Company has not sold any  asset to securitization / reconstruction company for asset 
reconstruction in the current and previous year. 

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitization 
transactions
Amount of securitized assets as per books of SPV sponsored 
by NBFC
Amount of exposures retained by NBFC to comply with MRR 
as on the date of balance sheet

· First loss
· Others

b. On-balance sheet exposure
· First loss – cash collateral
· Others

Amount of exposures other than MRR 

i. Exposure to own securitizations
· First loss
· Loss

ii. Exposure to third party transactions
· First loss
· Others

b. On-balance sheet exposure
i. Exposure to own securitizations

· Others
ii. Exposure to third party transactions

· First loss
· Others

2 8

15.77 98.51

Nill Nill
Nill Nill

Nill Nill

Nill Nill
Nill Nill

Nill Nill
Nill Nill

Nill Nill

Nill Nill

Nill Nill

3.48 16.00
6.30 28.40

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note: The above are securitisation and assignment transactions during the year. 

l assets in the current and previous 
year.

0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

 Number of loans assigned 
 Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 
 Aggregate consideration 

 75,413 
 125.53 
 125.53 
 9.68 

 170,456 
 247.31 
 247.31 
 38.43 

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

f. Details of securitisation and assignment transactions:
"The Company has undertaken no securitisation and one assignment transaction during the current
year (March 31, 2020: four assignment transactions and four securitisation transactions)." 

Note:
Impairment allowance on Stage 1 loans has been considered as ‘contingent provision for standard asset’ 
for the purpose of determining Tier II capital;

CRAR (%)
CRAR-Tier I Capital (%)
CRAR-Tier II Capital (%)
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier II capital
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments

20.89%
17.74%

3.15%
 45.03 

 Nil

23.01%
19.53%

3.48%
 55.00 

 Nil 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
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0202 ,13 hcraM1202 ,13 hcraMsralucitraP

A. Direct exposure
(i) Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property 
that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented; 
(All loans are under Rs XX)

(ii) Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates 

premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted 
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels 
land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). 
Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits;

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS)
and other securitised exposures-
          a. Residential

b. Commercial Real Estate.
B. Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National 
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

0.18 

Nil 

Nil 

 Nil 
 Nil 
 Nil 

Nil 
0.18

0.26 

Nil 

Nil 

 Nil 
 Nil 
 Nil 

Nil 
0.26

i. Exposures:
Exposure to Real estate

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

Exposure to Capital Market
The Company does not have any exposure to Capital Market

GBL) exceeded by applicable NBFC
The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year w.r.t Single Borrower 
Limit / Group Borrower Limit 

j. Unsecured advances: Refer Note 6.

f regulatory organisations as below. 

 CIN No.U65929TN2005PLC057390 
b) Reserve Bank of India N-07.00754

20 

l. Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators:
No penalties were imposed by RBI and other regulators during current and previous year.
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m. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings:

o. Drawdown from reserves:
There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2021 (previous year: Nil).

n. Provisions and contingencies (shown under the head expenditu

10.11% Non-Convertible Debentures

9.80% Non-Convertible Debentures

11.00% Non-Convertible Debentures

10.50% Non-Convertible Debentures

13.00% Non-Convertible Debentures

14.25% Subordinated, Unsecured,
Non-Convertible Debentures

Long-term loan from banks

Long term – Unallocated

ICRA Ltd

ICRA Ltd

CARE

ICRA Ltd

ICRA Ltd

ICRA Ltd

ICRA Ltd

ICRA Ltd

31-12-2020

23-12-2020

29-10-2019

17-08-2020

13-08-2020

30-03-2017

18-12-2020

18-12-2020

A- placed on watch
with positiveimplication

A- placed on watch
with positive implication

BBB+ (Under Credit watch
with Positive Implications) 

A- placed on watch
with positive implication

A- placed on watch
with positive implication

A- placed on watch
with positive implication

A- placed on watch
with positive implication

A- placed on watch
with positive implication

 25.00 

 37.50 

 36.00 

 50.00 

 15.00 

 50.00 

 1,206.19 

 93.81

30-06-2022

23-04-2024

29-05-2023

17-02-2022

16-08-2021

29-03-2024

30-11-2021

30-11-2021

Particulars
Date of
rating (Previous

year rating)

Borrowing

imposed by rating
agency ( in crores)

Valid 
up to

Name of
rating
agency

 
 
 
 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

 
 

 Other related parties Balances at the end of the year

Impairment o ancial instruments
Provision for income tax
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment and availment
Total

 60.23 
 13.00 

 1.05 
 1.03 
 75.31

 8.09 
 30.01 

 0.77 
 0.57 

 39.44 

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

p. Concentration of advances, exposures and NPAs

Concentration of advances 
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 2.07  1.82 
(%) of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances 0.10% 0.09%
Concentration of exposures 
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 2.07  1.82 
(%) of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers
to total exposure 0.10% 0.09%
Concentration of NPAs 
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 0.21 0.17

March 31, 2021Particulars March 31, 2020
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r. Disclosure of customer complaints

a. No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
b. No. of complaints received during the year
c. No. of complaints redressed during the year
d. No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

 - 
 1,245
 1,245 
 - 

- 
 167
 167 
 - 

March 31, 2021Particulars March 31, 2020

p. Sector-wise NPAs

Agriculture and allied activities
MSME
Corporate borrowers
Services
Others
Unsecured personal loans
Auto loans
Other personal loans

3.61%
0.66%
0.00%
0.39%

0.00%
NA
0.03%

1.07%
0.52%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
NA 
NA 

Percentage of NPAs
to Total Advances in

that sector as at
March 31, 2021

Percentage of NPAs
to Total Advances in

that sector as at
March 31, 2020

Particulars

(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross):

Opening balance
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balance

(iii) Movement of Net NPAs
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balance

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
Opening balance
Provisions made during the year 
Write-o  / write-back of excess provisions
Closing balance

0.59%

 17.11 
 86.23 
 71.65 
 31.69 

 6.57 
 76.51 
 71.65 
 11.43 

 10.54 
 9.71 

 - 
 20.25 

1.63%

 31.69
 131.62
 (64.24)
 99.07 

 11.43
 85.36

 (64.24)
 32.55

 20.25
 46.27

 -
 66.52

March 31, 2021Particulars March 31, 2020

q. Movement of NPAs

M Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements
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March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

 
 

 Other related parties 
Particular

Average interest (a)
Average ive cost of borrowing (b)*
Net interest margin (a-b)

20.12%
10.69%

9.43%

21.34%
11.36%

9.98%

Nature of fraud

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

No. of cases Amount of fraud Recovery Amount provided

s. Information on instances of fraud
Instances of fraud reported during the year ended March 31, 2021:

t. The net interest margin (NIM)

t. The net interest margin (NIM)

u. Public disclosure on Liquidity risk management

ii. Top 20 large deposits ( amount in Rs. Crore and % of total deposits)-
Not applicable. The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial 
Company registered with Reserve Bank of India does not accept public deposits.

iii. Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs. Crore and % of total borrowings)

Nature of fraud

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

No. of cases Amount of fraud Recovery Amount provided

Number of signi cant counterparties Amount
(Rs. in Crore)

% of Total
Deposits

% of Total
Liabilities

Instances of fraud reported during the year ended March 31, 2020

Note:
1.Above computation is in accordance with the method accepted by RBI vide its letter no
DNBS.PD.NO.4906/03.10.038/2012-13 dated April 4,2013 to Micro ance Institutions Network (the“MFIN 
format”) read with the FAQs issued by RBI on October 12, 2017. 

2. Securitised loans not qualifying for de-recognition as per RBI’s “true sale” criteria and related interest
income have not been considered for computation of “average interest charged” in accordance with the
MFIN format. Accordingly, the purchase consideration received towards such securitisations and related

ance costs have not been considered for computation of “average ive cost of borrowings”. As per 
Ind AS 109, such loans and borrowings continue to be recognized on the balance sheet in the Ind AS

ancial statements. 

"3.Interest income considered for computation of “average interest charged” excludes loan processing 
fee collected from customers in accordance with para  56 (vi) of the RBI Master Directions. As per Ind AS 
109, such loan processing fee forms part of interest income in the Ind AS Consolidated nancial 
statements." 

 25 1,995.18  NA  90.82%

 730.35 33.88%

Amount (Rs in Crore) % of Total Borrowings

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements
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Name of the instrume  product

Term loans from Banks
Term Loans from Financial Institutions
Non Convertible debentures
Term Loans from Non banking Financial Companies

 1,141.07 
 344.28 
 218.87 
 442.42

51.94%
15.67%

9.96%
20.14%

Amount ( in Crore) % of Total Liabilities

v. Stock Ratios

Particulars

Commercial papers
Non-convertible debentures
(original maturity of less than one year)
Other short-term liabilities

0%

0%
16.72%

0%

0%
1.67%

0%

0%
1.4 %

as a % of total
public funds

as a % of total
liabilities

as a % of total
assets

vi.Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
The Company’s Board of Directors has the overall responsibility of management of liquidity risk. 
The Board decides the strategic policies and procedures of the Company to manage liquidity risk 
in accordance with the risk tolerance/limits decided by it. 

The Company also has a Risk Management Committee, which is a sub-committee of the Board 
and is responsible for evaluating the overall risk faced by the Company including liquidity risk.  

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the Company is responsible ensuring 
adherence to the risk tolerance/limits as well as implementing the liquidity risk management 
strategy of the Company. 

"1. A “Signi cant counterparty” is de ned as a single counterparty or group of connected or 
liated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds 

total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs."  

2. A "sign cant instrument/product" is de ned as a single instrument/product of group of similar
instruments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds 
total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs. 

"3. Total Liabilities has been computed as sum of all liabilities (Balance Sheet re) less Equities 
and Reserves/Surplus."  

4. “Public funds" shall include funds raised either directly or indirectly through public deposits,
commercial paper, debentures, inter-corporate deposits and bank ance but excludes funds 
raised by issue of instruments compulsorily convertible into equity shares within a period not 
exceeding 10 years from the date of issue as de ed in Regulatory Framework for Core 
Investment Companies issued vide Not cation No. DNBS (PD) CC.No. 206/03.10.001/2010-11
dated January 5, 2011. 

M Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements
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Asset Asset

1 2 3 4 (5)=(3)-(4) 6 (7) = (4)-(6)

Performing
Assets

Standard

99.08

99.08

-

-

-

-

-

-

- - - - -

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- - - - -

- - - -

66.52

-

-

-

32.56

-

-

-

49.54

-

-

-

16.98

66.52

66.52

32.56 49.54 16.98

32.56 49.54

57.55

16.98

-

-

-

20.04
20.29

7.58

0.43

12.46

19.86

1,881.82

88.29
7.58
0.43

12.46

19.86

As at 31st March 2021

Other items

Loan to subaidiary

in crores

NA NA

1,901.86

108.58

99.08

Notes
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Asset Asset

1 2 3 4 (5)=(3)-(4) 6 (7) = (4)-(6)

Performing
Assets

Additional

1,901.86

108.58

31.69

31.69

-

-

-

-

-

-

- - - - -

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- - - - -

- - - -

20.25

-

-

-

11.43

-

-

-

19.83

-

-

-

0.49

20.25

20.25

11.43 19.83 0.43

11.43 19.83 0.42

-

-

-

20.04

20.29

19.02
7.36

1,881.82

88.29

7.58

0.43

12.46

19.86

4.09 (4.09)

1,885.47

29.68

11.74
0.15

7.27

7.21

As at 31st March 2020

Other items

in crores

NA NA

1,904.48

37.04

31.69

Note
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in crores

 in crores

(a) bentures : Secured 153.84 - 137.30 - 
:       Unsecured 65.02 - 50.02 - 

(other than falling ithin the meaning of ublic de osits) - - - - 
(b) ferred Credits - - - - 
(c) Term Loans 1,927.77 - 1,442.50 - 
(d) nter-cor orate loans and borro ing - - - - 
(e) Commercial Pa er - - - - 
(f) Other Loans (Working Ca ital Loans from anks) 9.15 - 80.80 - 

0.14 0.25
2,002.52 1,926.32

- - 
- - 

- - 
- - 

- - 
- - 

(a) Secured

(a) Loans here assets have been re ossessed

(b) Unsecured

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(a) Financial lease
(b) O erating lease
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire
(b) ossessed Assets
(iii) Other loans counting to ards AFC activities

(b) Loans other than (a) above
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- - 

- - 

- - 
- 45.02 
- - 
- - 

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

- - 

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

0.34 0.34 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

(i) Shares : (a) E uity

(b) Preference

(ii) bentures and onds
(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Certi cate of osits and Commercial Pa er)

(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others ( lease s ecify)

(i) Shares : (a) E uity
(b) Preference

(ii) bentures and onds

(v) Others ( lease s ecify)

(b) Preference
(ii) bentures and onds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others ( lease s ecify)

(i) Shares : (a) E uity
(b) Preference

(ii) bentures and onds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities

(i) Shares : (a) E uity
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Particulars

5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed
as in (2) and (3) above :

Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

1 lat Pa t

(a) Sub a

-

- - - -

(b) m am g p

-

- - - -

lat pa t

-

- - - -

2 lat pa t

0.14

2,002.52 2,002.66 0.25 1,926.32 1,926.57

Total 0.14 2,002.52        2,002.66       0.25           1,926.32 1,926.57     

6)
Investor group-wise classification of all investments 
(current and long term) in shares and securities (both 

quoted and unquoted):

Category

 Market Value /
Break up or fair 

value or NAV 

 Book Value (Net
of Provisions) 

Market Value /
Break up or fair 

value or NAV

Book Value (Net
of Provisions)

1 lat Pa t

(a) Sub a - - - -

- - - -
lat pa t - - - -

2 lat pa t 0.34 0.34 45.36 45.36

Total 0.34   0.34  45.36   45.36   

7) Other information

Particulars Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

( ) Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) lat pa t - -

(b) lat pa t 99.07 99.07 31.69

( ) Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) lat pa t - - -

(b) lat pa t 32.55 32.55 11.43

( ) t a qu at fa t t

1

2 v hall app abl a p by I t St (I AS) by ICAI

x. Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Company- Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (continued)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Category Amount net of provisions Amount net of provisions

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

f x x pa ag aph 3 Chapt -2 -Ba k al m y - Sy t m ally Im t - ak
m y ak

-
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short-term nature.

L l L l 2 L l L l L l 2 L l
Loans (measured at amortised cost) 2,002.65  - 2,036.54 85.629,1     -  1,958.47   -  
nvestments (measured at FVTPL) 0.34 -  -  0.34  45.36  45.02  -  0.34  

T al 2, . 2, .54 . 4 , . 4 45. 2 , .47 . 4

in crores

L l L l 2 L l L l L l 2 L l
58.861seitiruces tbe 47.071  03.731  42.041    

ings other than debt securitie 1,902.86   -  1,910.47   -  1,417.64   -  1,428.06   -  
39.47seitilibail detanidrobuS  -  87.69  -  74.90  -  85.09  -  

T al 2, . 4 2, . , . 4

i ial assets
Mar Mar

Carr i
t

air l e Carr i
t

elariaelariaCarr i
t

Carr i
t

air l e a ial lia ilities e
at a t st

22,raM22,raM

air l e
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39 Risk Management

39.1.a Risk management structure

Notes
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Risk measurement and reporting systems

Risk Management Strategies
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Notes
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Liquidity risk mitigation measures:

xpansion risk mitigation measures:

Cash Management Risk

Market Risk

Credit Risk

Market Exposure risk
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Notes

Concentration risk mitigation measures:
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Fixed deposits
Loans

 32.56 
 1,902.86 

 168.85 
 74.93 

 9.15 
 0.98 

 2,189.33 

 80.24 
 56.94 

 1,926.58 
 45.36 
 12.60 

 2,121.72 

 28.80

 1,417.64 
 137.30 

 74.90 
 80.79 

 1.79 

 1,741.22  

 80.24 
 56.94 

 1,926.58 
 0.34 

 12.60 

 2,076.70 

 28.80

 1,417.64 
 137.30 

 74.90 
 80.79 

 1.79 

 1,741.22 

 45.02 
 - 

 45.02 

 485.49 
 - 
 2,002.65 

 0.34 
 22.05 

 2,510.53 

 32.56 
 1,902.86 

 168.85 
 74.93 

 9.15 
 0.98 

 2,189.33 

Borrowings under securitisation arrangement

Fixed deposits
Loans

Borrowings under securitisation arrangement

39.2  Impairment assessment

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

Assets

Assets

Non-traded Primary risk sensitivity 
risk

Traded
risk

Carrying
amount

Wednesday 31.03.2020

Non-traded
Primary risk sensitivity risk

Traded
risk

Carrying
amount

Tuesday  31.03.2020

 485.49 
 -
 2,002.65 

 0.34 
 22.05 

 2,510.53
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North
West 
South 
East 

 160.11
 232.33

1,397.65
 212.57

 2,002.66

 144.28
 207.99 

 1,422.63
 151.68

 1,926.58

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes

 31.03.2021  31.03.2020

scenarios.
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 1,631.63    512.10 3.89    2,147.62 

 137.30 
 1,417.64 

 74.90 
 1.79

 27.58 
 485.33 

 0.00 

 3.97 

 0.03 
 - 

 168.85 
 1,902.86 

 74.93 
 0.98 

39.3 Foreign currency risk: 

Interest rate sensitivity 

  As at 
31.03.2020 

  As at 
31.03.2021 

  Cash  Changes in   Exchnage  Others 

 1,587.90    48.73

 2,155.80 
 401.36 

 5.37 

 1,710.63 
 401.61 

 4.26 

 153.22 
 1,383.48 

 50.00 
 1.20 

 38.74 
 25.00 

 0.59 

 137.30 
 1,417.64 

 74.90 
 1.79 

  As at 
31.03.2021  

  As at 
31.03.2020 

  As at 
31.03.2019 

  As at 
31.03.2020 

  Cash  Changes in   Exchnage  Others 
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Notes

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

2,155.80 1,710.63 

401.36 401.61 

5.37 4.26

Net  includes  securities +  other than  securities + + 

Madura Micro Finance Limited 

39.6 Capital
The  manages its  to  inherent to its  and meet the 

requirement  The the is monitored using, among other 

(i) Capital management

structure  This  into account the   the 
 classes   The  manages the  structure and  adjustments to it in the light 

 changes in economic conditions and the  characteristics  the  assets. In order to maintain 
or adjust the  structure, the  adjust the amount  to shareholders, return 
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Term loans

securitisation

 230.00 
 230.00 

 0.16 

 147.90 

 0.29 
 2.77 

 151.12 

 21.50 
 21.50  

 ` in crores
  As at

 31.03.2021
  As at

 31.03.2020

Upto 30 / 31 
days

 38.13 

 98.90 

 0.30 
 2.30 

  139.63 

 2.61 

 113.11 

 0.29 
 1.32 

  117.33 

 21.22 

 411.12 

 0.88 
 1.90 

 435.12 

 74.03 

 717.67 

 9.35 
 1.08 

  802.13 

 181.38 

 2,062.12 

 115.34 
 9.37 

  2,368.21 

 45.23 

 553.36 

 72.23 

  670.82 

 0.00 

 20.06 

 19.06  12.94 

  12.94   39.12 

    1 to 2 
  months 

  2 to 3 
    months  

  3 to 6 
   months  

   6 months 
    to 1 year 

  1 to 3 
  years 

  3 to 5
  years   

    Over 5
    years 
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Notes
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Building

99.99%

0.01%

 401.33 

 0.04 

 10 Years 
 10 Years 
 10 Years 

 0.02 
 0.10 
 0.02 

 0.26 

40 Change in accounting estimates

Liquidity assessment as on March 31, 2020

securitisation

 0.38 

 107.58 

 0.30 
 14.10 

  122.36 

100.00%  401.37 

  net assets 
  "Amount  
`

15.00%

85.00%

100.00%

  account

  net assets 
  "Amount  
`

` 

  Upto 30 / 31 
  days     

 4.25 

 83.38 

 0.30 
 10.90 

  98.83 

 1.09 

 75.57 

 0.29 
 10.34 

  87.29 

 41.11 

 297.89 

 0.88 
 26.02 

  365.90 

 62.57 

 484.72 

 9.34 
 20.45 

  577.08 

 147.38 

 1,559.20 

 126.44 
 83.80 

  1,916.82 

 37.98 

 501.04 

 22.22 
 1.99 

  563.23 

 0.00 

 9.02 

 64.61  28.50 

  28.50    73.63 

      1 to 2 
  months 

  2 to 3 
    months  

  3 to 6 
   months  

   6 months 
    to 1 year 

  1 to 3 
  years 

  3 to 5
  years   

    Over 5
    years 
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` in crores)

(` in crores)
` in crores)

0.20 
7,194,761 

7,194,761 

10.00 

 79.67 
 79.67 
 79.67 
 7,194,761 

 7,194,761 
 110.74 
 110.74 
 10.00 

43. 

44. 

 31.03.2021  31.03.2020

 31.03.2021  31.03.2020
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Domestic

221



47. 

48. 

49. 

50. 

51. 
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52. 

53. 
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